Public Document Pack

To: All Members of the Policy and Resources Committee
(and any other Members who may wish to attend)

The Protocol and Procedure for visitors attending meetings J. Henshaw
of Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority can be found by LB (Hons)

clicking here or on the Authority’s website: Clerk to the Authority
http://www.merseyfire.gov.uk - About Us > Fire Authority.

Tel: 0151 296 4000
Extn: 4112 Helen Peek

Your ref: Our ref HP/NP Date: 19 November 2014

Dear Sir/Madam,

You are invited to attend a meeting of the POLICY AND RESOURCES

COMMITTEE to be held at 1.00 pm on THURSDAY, 27TH NOVEMBER, 2014 in the

Temporary Meeting Room at Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters,

Bridle Road, Bootle.

PLEASE NOTE: There will be a Learning Lunch for Members who have not yet

received Code of Conduct Training prior to the meeting at 12.00pm

Yours faithfully,

y 7

Clerk to the Authority

Encl.

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle, Merseyside L30 4YD Fax: 0151 296 4144
Legal Services 0151 296 4122, Democratic Services: 0151 296 4112



This page is intentionally left blank



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

27 NOVEMBER 2014

AGENDA

Members

Les Byrom (Chair)
Peter Brennan
Roy Gladden

Ted Grannell
Denise Roberts
Jean Stapleton
Sharon Sullivan
Lesley Rennie

1. Preliminary Matters

Members are requested to consider the identification of:

a) declarations of interest by individual Members in relation to any item
of business on the Agenda

b) any additional items of business which the Chair has determined
should be considered as matters of urgency; and

c) items of business which may require the exclusion of the press and

public during consideration thereof because of the possibility of the
disclosure of exempt information.

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee,
held on 23 Serptember 2014, are submitted for approval as a correct record and
for signature by the Chair.

3. Financial Review 2014/15 - April to September (Pages 5 - 38)

To consider Report CFO/113/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning
a review of the financial position, revenue and capital, for the Authority for
2014/15.




Treasury Management Interim Report 2014/15 (Pages 39 - 46)

To consider Report CFO/116/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning
a review of the Authority’s Treasury Management activities during the year,
to ensure that they are consistent with its approved Treasury Management
Strategy and have remained within the approved Prudential Indicators; and
the Authority’s Treasury Management performance for the period April to
September 2014 for the financial year 2014/15.

Voluntary Severance Grey Book (Pages 47 - 52)

To consider Report CFO/121/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer,
concerning the potential use of voluntary severence agreements for
firefighting staff, as a mechanism to achieve the required savings to meet
the ongoing financial challenge faced by the Authority.

Introduction of Apprenticeships (Pages 53 - 62)

To consider Report CFO/112/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer,
concerning the introduction of workplace apprenticeships within the
Service.

Merseyside Police Estate Strateqy (Pages 63 - 92)

To consider Report CFO/115/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning
the publication of the Police Estate Strategy.

Toxteth Firefit Hub Annual Report and Accounts (Pages 93 - 118)

To consider Report CFO/107/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning
the Annual Report and Accounts for the period ending 31% March, 2014
for the Firefit Hub.

Station Mergers Project - Appointment of Contractor (Pages 119 -
136)

This Report contains EXEMPT information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

To consider Report CFO/111/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, concerning
the appointment of a contractor to build the new Community Fire Stations
as part of the Station Mergers Project.



If any Members have queries, comments or require additional information relating to any
item on the agenda please contact Committee Services and we will endeavour to provide the
information you require for the meeting. Of course this does not affect the right of any
Member to raise questions in the meeting itself but it may assist Members in their
consideration of an item if additional information is available.

Refreshments
Any Members attending on Authority business straight from work or for long periods of time,

and require a sandwich, please contact Democratic Services, prior to your arrival, for
arrangements to be made.



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Item 2

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

23 SEPTEMBER 2014

MINUTES

Present: Clir Leslie T. Byrom CBE (Chair) Councillors Robbie Ayres,
Ted Grannell, Denise Roberts, Jean Stapleton, Dave Hanratty
and Linda Maloney

Also Present:
Apologies of absence were received from: Councillors
Peter Brennan, Sharon Sullivan, Tony Newman and
Lesley Rennie

Chairs Announcements

Prior to the opening of Agenda Business The Chair:

I. Advised the Committee that Members of the Public were present to
record the proceeding of the meeting.

II.  Welcomed Robin Baker Engagement Lead, and Paul Basnett Audit

Manager, from Grant Thornton who were present to deliver their findings
in relation to Item 3 on the Agenda.

Preliminary Matters

Members considered the identification of declarations of interest, any urgent
additional items, and any business that may require the exclusion of the press
and public.

Resolved that:

a) no declarations of interest were made by individual Members in relation
to any item of business on the Agenda

b) no additional items of business to be considered as matters of urgency
were determined by the Chair; and

c) Agenda item 7, PFI Project Report for the Period September 2013 — July
2014, contains EXEMPT information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, therefore required the
exclusion of the press and public during consideration thereof because of
the possibility of the disclosure of exempt information.

Page 1



Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee, held on
1% April 2014, were approved as a correct record and signed accordingly by the Chair.

Audit Findings Report

Robin Baker Engagement Lead from Grant Thornton, External Audit, presented
a summary of the Audit Findings in support of their report and gave an
unqualified decision on the Authority having clear accounts on the basis that the
Chair and the Deputy Chief Executive sign the letter of recommendation on
behalf of the Authority today.

The Deputy Chief Executive informed Members that this was Robin Baker’s final
Audit and presentation in relation to Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority, as
he has reached the end of his five year set term.

Robin Baker thanked all officers who have been involved with the Audit
Processes, over the five years he has been the appointed Auditor, for their
professionalism and polite assistance throughout.

Resolved that:

a) Members Note the Audit Findings Report of the Authority’s
External Auditors, Grant Thornton and;

b) Robin Baker be thanked on behalf of the Authority, for his work
over the last five years as external Auditor, and wished well for the
future.

Statement of Accounts 2013/14 - Authorisation for Issue
(CFO/096/14)

Members considered report CFO/096/14, of the Deputy Chief Executive,
regarding the audited Statement of Accounts for 2013/14.

Resolved that:

Members
a) The audited Statement of Accounts 2013/14, attached as
Appendix A to this report, be approved and

b) The Statement of Accounts 2013/14 be authorised for issue, and
c) The letter of representation in relation to the 2013/14 accounts,

attached as Appendix B, be approved and signed by the Chair and
Deputy Chief Executive, on behalf of the Authority.

Page 2



Financial Review 2014/15 - April to June
(CFO/097/14)

Members considered report CFO/097/14, of the Deputy Chief Executive,
regarding Financial Review 2014/15 for the period April to June, providing
Members with the revenue and capital position, and full health check, of the
Authority’s finances for the first quarter of year 2014/15.

Members were advised that use of reserves would be maximised to try and
avoid compulsory redundancies, and monies would be moved into capital
investment reserves to avoid borrowing, and investments split amongst
agencies to cover risk as much as possible.

Resolved that:

The contents of the report be noted.

The Openness in Local Government Requlations 2014
(CFO/087/14)

Members considered report CFO/087/14 of the Clerk to the Authority,
concerning the Openness in Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 which
came into force on 4™ August 2014, and of the impact of the Regulations for
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority, in relation to public access to record
proceedings of Authority meetings and the recording and publishing of any
Delegated Decisions.

The committee were advised that a report will be submitted to a future Authority
meeting to approve amendments to the Authority’s Constitution following the
impact of the Regulations.

Concerns were raised in relation to the Regulations provision for the public to
record and publish proceedings of Local Authority meetings, and the possibility
of misinterpretation of business discussed, being available in the public domain.

Members were advised that one of the Authority’s Corporate Communications
team are usually present during meetings of the Authority and would therefore
be able to publish articles on behalf of the Authority should the need arise.

Resolved that:

d) That the Openness in Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014, with effect from 4th August 2014, be noted, and

e) The revised template for Reports to the Authority be noted.

Page 3



PFI Project - Progress report for the period September 2013 - July 2014
(CFO/098/14)

Members considered report CFO/098/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive
regarding a review of progress on the North West Fire & Rescue Services

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Project over the period from September 2013 —
July 2014.

Resolved that:

That the progress on the North West Fire & Rescue Services PFI Project,
and the start of the contract management phase, be noted.

Close

Date of next meeting Thursday, 27 November 2014

Signed: Date:

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 3

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: | POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/113/14
NO:
PRESENTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
RESPONSIBLE KIERAN TIMMINS REPORT IAN CUMMINS
OFFICER: AUTHOR:
OFFICERS
CONSULTED:
TITLE OF REPORT: | FINANCIAL REVIEW 2014/15 - APRIL TO SEPTEMBER
APPENDICES: APPENDIX A1: REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENTS
SUMMARY
APPENDIX A2: BUDGET MOVEMENTS ON
RESERVES
APPENDIX A3: FIRE SERVICE REVENUE BUDGET
MOVEMENTS SUMMARY
APPENDIX A4: CORPORATE SERVICE REVENUE
BUDGET MOVEMENTS SUMMARY
APPENDIX B: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15
APPENDIX C: APPROVED AUTHORITY CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2014/15 — 2018/19
APPENDIX D: TRANSFORMATION FUND LETTER
APPENDIX E: DEBTOR WRITE-OFFS

Purpose of Report

1. To review the financial position, revenue and capital, for the Authority for 2014/15.
The Authority receives regular comprehensive financial reviews during the year which
provide a full health check on the Authority’s finances. This report covers the first 6
months of the year (April — September 2014).

Recommendation

2. That Members;

¢ Note the potential £1.6m favourable revenue position identified within this report,

e Approve the utilisation of the £1.6m favourable revenue position to increase the
capital investment reserve in light of the future station merger programme and
Service investment needs, and

¢ Note the successful bid to the transformation and efficiency fund which has
received £4.5m

¢ Instruct the Deputy Chief Executive to continue to work with budget managers to
maximise savings in 2014/15.

Page 5



Executive Summary

Revenue:
The Authority has a detailed medium-term financial plan. The key elements of
this are :-
- To control Council Tax
- Continue with its modernisation programme and deliver the Authority’s
mission of achieving Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective
Firefighters
- To deliver the required savings through efficiencies of which most are
employee related whilst minimising the impact of the cuts.

The Authority is on target to deliver the approved 2014/15 budget savings and
is progressing well with the required structural changes in its workforce to
maintain the required savings on a permanent basis. The Authority has a
strategy of maximising savings and delivering its savings plan as early as
possible in order to increase reserves as a hedge against the future financial
challenges. Overall this report has identified that in cash terms the Authority is
£1.6m ahead of its saving plan target. Members are asked to approve utilising
this saving to fund an increase in the capital investment reserve in order to
provide funding towards the future station merger initiative. The Deputy Chief
Executive is continuing to work with budget holders to maximise savings in
2014/15.

The total budget requirement remains at the original budget level of
£64.356m, (appendix A1 — A4 outlines in detail all the revenue budget and
reserve movements).

Capital:

The capital programme planned spend has increased by £3.764m, of which
£3.100m relates to the new Prescot Fire Station scheme (CFO/095/14). The
remaining £0.664m increase relates to approved amendments in current
schemes. The £3.764m increase is fully funded by specific grant or other non-
borrowing funding. The revised Capital Programme is outlined in Appendix B
and C.

Reserves & Balances:
The general balance remains unchanged at £2.000m. All movements in
earmarked reserves are outlined in Appendix A2.

Treasury Management:

Short-term interest rates have remained at 0.50% as expected. No new long
term borrowing has been arranged and the Authority has continued its policy
of reducing investments and only taking short term borrowing to cover cash
flow requirements.

Financial Processes:
Performance in Financial processes remains strong.

Page 6




Introduction and Background

3.

The purpose of this report is to enable the Authority to monitor its income and
expenditure levels against its budget on a regular basis throughout the year to
ensure effective financial management.

This report is the review of the Authority’s position up to the end of the September
of the financial year 2014/15 (April — September 2014).

In order to ensure that the financial reviews provide a regular and effective
financial health check on all aspects of the Authority’s finances the following
structure has been adopted.

Financial Review Structure

Section Content
A Final Position 2013/14
B Current Financial Year Review (Revenue Budget,

Capital Programme and movement on Reserves)

C Treasury Management Review
D Internal Audit
E Financial Process Monitoring/Performance Indicators

(A) 2013/2014 Position/Final Accounts

6.

Members received a report on the 2013/14 final accounts position at the Authority
meeting on 24" July 2014 (report CFO/079/14). The accounts reported that the
Authority was ahead of its savings target so was able to add to reserves in line
with its strategy. Overall there was an increase in earmarked reserves of £2.307m
(of this £0.955m related to phasing of grant funded and specific projects into
2014/15).

Grant Thornton have now completed the audit of the accounts and confirmed the
position as reported.

(B) Current Financial Year — 2014/15

8.

The purpose of the financial review report is to provide Members with an
assurance that the approved budget remains robust and that the current forecast
of expenditure can be contained within the available resources. If actual
expenditure or income for the year is inconsistent with the current budget then the
report will, if necessary, identify the appropriate corrective action.

Page 7



10.

11.

Revenue Position:

Budget Movements: The attached Appendix A to this report summarises the
movements in the revenue budget. The net budget requirement remains at
£64.356m which is consistent with the original budget.

There have been a number of budget adjustments with no net impact because
they are either self-balancing virements within department budgets or budget
increases financed by reserves in line with previously agreed Authority decisions.
The firefighters pay award was agreed at 1% and £0.265m was drawn down from
the inflation provision to reflect that outcome. The net use of reserves for the
period was £0.863m, of which £0.522m was the allocation from the reserves to
fund expenditure on capital schemes approved by the Authority including:-

JCC SHQ work £0.340m

JCC control £0.029m

Fleet Management System £0.078m

Energy Conservation Salix Schemes £0.075m

Update on Budget Savings Implementation: The Authority has approved
savings in total of £25.577m as part of the medium term financial plans. These will
take until 2016/17 to deliver in full because operational savings are being achieved
by natural retirement rates. Of this total £20.410m was expected to have been
implemented by the end of 2014/15. This has mostly been achieved with only
£0.303m yet to be formally implemented. Plans are well advanced to deliver these
savings and in cash terms the total value of savings will be delivered in the year.
The outstanding £0.303m savings options are;

Phase 1 & 2 (2011/12 & 2013/14 Budget Saving Options);

o Estates Savings target £0.075m; the original target was £0.250m and
£0.100m has been delivered by reconfiguring the cleaning service and
£0.075m as a result of a reduction in management costs. Outsourcing of
the facilities management (FM) will deliver the remainder of this saving.
The FM outsourcing has been deferred for a number of reasons but it is
expected to be concluded during 2014/15.

o Review of ICT Expenditure £0.150m; The Authority set a target saving on
ICT expenditure of £0.200m in 2013/14 rising to £0.350m in future years.
The £0.150m reflects the required increased saving target as £0.200m of
permanent savings were implemented in 2013/14. Officers are currently in
negotiations with our external ICT contractors (most ICT is outsourced) on
proposals to achieve the additional £0.150m.

e Restructure of the Training and Development Academy (TDA) £0.030m; of
the original £0.062m saving target £0.030m remains to be formally
actioned. Officers are finalising a restructure that will deliver the remaining
saving by the end of the year.

e Search and Rescue Team (SRT) contracts review £0.048m; revised staff

Page 8



contracts will deliver reduced operating costs for the SRT while
maintaining the current service standards.

Table A below summarises the progress in implementing the approved saving
options at the time of writing this report:

Progress in Implementing Approved Saving Options
2014/15| 2015/16) 2016/17{ 2017/18] 2018/19
£000 | £000 [ £000 | £000 | £'000

: A) Phase 1 &2 (2011/12 & 2013/14 Budgets) Approved Savings:

Options formally implemented into budget -18.957] -18.899| -18.974| -18.974) -18.974
Approved Saving Options yet to be formally implemented:
Phase 1
Outsource Estates function -75 -75 -15 -15 -15
Phase 2
Review of ICT spend (part 2 increase in saving £200k to £350k ) 1501 -150] 1501 150  -150
TDA Restructure -30 -30 -30 -30 -30
SRT amended contracts -48 -48 -48 -48 -48

Value of Saving Options yet to be formally implemented|  -303] -303| -303] -303| -303
Total | -19,260( -19,202| -19,277| -19,277| -19,277

B) 2014/15 Budget Approved Savings:
‘ Options formally implemented into budget -1150] -1.878] -2.120] -2.000f -2.000

Approved Saving Options yet to be formally implemented:
Non Employee Budget review
10% saving on Non Uniform Establishment
Operational Response
Value of Saving Options yet to be formally implemented

0 0 0 0
-450[  -900] -900[ -900
-350[ -3,000{ -3400[ -3400
-800[ -3,900{ -4,300[ -4,300

OO O O

Total [ 1,150 -2,678[ -6,020] -6,300[ -6,300

Total Value of Approved Savings Options (A + B) 20,410] -21,880] -25,297| -25,577 -25,577

Total of Approved Savings vet to be formally implemented -303| -1,103| -4203] -4.603| -4,603

Actual staff numbers are continually monitored to ensure the Service continues to
deliver in “cash” terms the required saving target.

12. Actual Expenditure in comparison to Revenue Budget: The Authority is
expecting further grant cuts in 2015/16 and future years and therefore as part of its
strategy it has directed officers to maximise savings in the year to contribute
towards the building up reserves. Such reserves can then be used as part of an
implementation and risk management strategy to deliver savings.

Employee Costs;
Employee costs make-up approximately 80% of the Authority’s revenue
budget and is the most risk critical area of the financial plan therefore
these costs are monitored extremely closely.

Page 9



Firefighter retirements have continued in line with the forecast profile
adopted for the financial strategy. As a consequence of the current
national firefighter dispute the take-up of additional voluntary hours has
reduced significantly. After taking account of other small savings on the
uniform employee budget the expected overall saving on firefighter
employee costs is £0.400m.

Staff turnover within some support staff posts has resulted in short term
vacancies and this combined with post-holders not being at the top of the
their budgeted grade is expected to deliver savings over and above the
approved target of delivering £0.200m from effective vacancy
management by £0.105m.

Other Non-Employee Revenue Costs;
Merseyside Pension Fund has revised the charge for the Authority’s local
government pension deficit payment to £2.538m from the £2.818m
estimate provided during the 2014/15 budget preparation. This £0.280m
reduction will result in a favourable variance in 2014/15.

Firefighters Pensions
Members will be well aware that the Government is introducing changes to
the firefighter pension schemes on 1% April 2015. A valuation has been
undertaken to assess the future employer rates of contributions to the
various pension schemes and more information is expected to be released
about this as part of the Chancellors Autumn statement on 3™ December.
This may have a significant impact on the overall paybill from 2015/16.

Contingency for 2014/15 Pay & Price Increases;

Members will recall that the budget made a 1% provision for pay bill
increases in 2014/15. The pay award for firefighting staff has been settled
at the 1% assumed but no agreement has been reached yet for other staff
(although a two year offer that equates to 1.1%p.a. is currently being
considered by the unions). Officers are continuing to control the allocation
of the non-employee inflation provision to determine if any efficiencies can
be identified in light of the coming financial challenge. No variance on the
inflation provision has been assumed at this stage but officers are hopeful
a saving will materialise.

Other Non-Employee Revenue Costs;

The Deputy Chief Executive is continuing to work with budget holders to

maximise savings in 2014/15. Additional one-off savings have been

identified as outlined below;

e Supplies and services — the Authority set a non-employee saving target
of £0.150m in 2014/15 rising to £0.275m in future years. Officers have
managed to deliver the full saving target this year. In addition one-off
savings on phones; uniforms; professional services and a number of
other variations has resulted in a forecast additional saving of £0.465m.

o The Authority funds most of its capital expenditure through borrowing
and the resulting debt repayments, (Minimum Revenue Provision,
MRP), and interest costs are charged to the revenue account. The

Page 10



current treasury management policies (which seek to delay borrowing
by minimising investments) combined with the impact of 2013/14 re-
phasing of capital schemes into future years has resulted in a saving
on MRP and interest payments of £0.625m.

e |Interest on Balances - As members may be aware current interest
rates on investments is extremely low, often less than 0.5%. Therefore
there is likely to be a shortfall in investment income of approximately
£0.275m.

The Deputy Chief Executive is continuing to work with budget holders to maximise
savings in 2014/15 and will continue to monitor actual staff numbers during the year
to ensure the Service continues to deliver in “cash” terms the required saving
target.

Summary of Revenue Forecast Position: The Authority has made good progress
in implementing the approved budget saving options and required organisational
structure changes.

A small number of budget options remain to be fully completed in budgetary terms,
however due to Firefighter retirements and other green book savings the Service
continues to deliver in “cash” terms the required saving target.

Overall the latest forecast has identified a revenue saving of £1.600m. The Deputy
Chief Executive is continuing to work with budget holders to maximise savings in
2014/15. Table B below summarise the revenue year-end forecast position based
on spend to the end of September 2014:

Page 11



Table B: Anticipated Year-End Revenue Position

SE;S?CE CORPMGT| TOTAL AZL;\L FORE- | VARF

supcer | BUDGET | BUDGET | . '™, | CAST | ANCE

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 | £'000 | £'000

Expenditure

Employee Costs 51,647 393 52,040 25474 51,255 -785
Premises Costs 3,031 0 3,031 1,180 3,031 0
Transport Costs 1,542 0 1,542 898 1,542 0
Supplies and Senices 4,450 66 4,516 1,314 4,051 -465
Agency Senices 4,947 0 4,947 2,817 4,947 0
Central Support Senices 382 100 482 193 482 0
Capital Financing 8,218 0 8,218 of 7593 -625
Income -6,422 0 -6,422 2458  -6,422 0
Net Expenditure 67,795 550l 68354] 29418 66,479[ 1875
Contingency Pay&Prices 549 549 0 549 0
Cost of Services 68,344 559] 68,903 29418 67,028] -1875
Interest on Balances -372 -372 27 -97 275
Movement on Reserves -4,175 -4,175 0 -4.175 0
Total Operating Cost 63,797 559 64,356 29391 62,756] -1,600

Capital Programme Position:

The last financial review report (CFO/010/14) approved a 5 year capital
programme worth £33.347m. This has now been updated for scheme additions
and changes during quarter 2 of £3.764m which are summarised in the table
below:

Page 12



Movementin the 5 Year Capital Programme
1:;;' 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19
Expenditure £000 | £'000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000
2015/16 re-phasings 0.0| -3,060.0| 3,060.0
Amendments to Approved Schemes;
Prescot FS New Build (CFO/095/14) 3,100.0 0.0| 3,100.0
JCC Build (CFO/109/14) 4210 4210 0.0
JCC Build 1.0 1.0
Energy Consenvation Salix Schemes 75.0 75.0
Fleet Management System 87.5 87.5
Time & Resource Mgt ICT System 50.0 50.0
JCC Scheme - ICT works 2.0 29.0
3,763.5 -2,396.5| 6,160.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Funding
Borrowing:
Re-phasing of approved schemes into future yrs 0.0{ -3,060.0| 3,560.0] -500.0 0.0 0.0
Capital Reserve 1,277.0] 447.0| 830.0
Energy Reserve 75.0 75.0
Capital spend funded from the Revenue Budget 60.5 60.5
Grants:
CLG Grant - Prescot FS 1,770.0 1,770.0
Capital Receipts
Huyton FS 250.0 250.0
Whiston FS 250.0 250.0
External Contributions
M'side Police (JCC) 81.0 81.0
3,763.5 -2,396.5| 6,160.0 0.0 0.0 0.0]

14. Although the level of planned expenditure has increased the level of required
borrowing has remained unchanged as the increase is funded by specific
resources. The increase in the programme can be explained by:

Members approved the merger of Huyton and Whiston fire stations at Prescot
and (CFO/095/14) and this has been added to the programme. The estimated
cost of £3.100m is funded by a Government grant of £1.770m with the balance
coming from capital receipts and reserves.

A number of station refurbishments have been deferred pending the outcome of
the station merger consultation and as a consequence £3.060m has been re-
phased into 2015/16 and consolidated within the station refurbishment
provision.

The Authority recently considered the update report on the JCC project
(CFO/109/14) and approved the allocation of a previously set aside
contingency of £0.421m in relation to the Stage C works and other
unavoidable costs. The cost of these works is to be funded from the capital
reserve and external (police) contributions. In addition a small increase in the
JCC control ICT costs, £0.030m, has been built into the ICT budget and is
being funded from the capital investment reserve.

Page 13



15.

16.

17.

18.

e Increase in Energy Conservation Salix provision, £0.075m. The Authority
received pump-prime grant funding to contribute towards the cost of energy
saving schemes. This money is constantly re-cycled into new schemes from the
revenue savings it delivers. The £0.075m reflects the “new” monies available to
contribute to energy saving schemes in 2014/15.

e The Authority approved the setting aside of £0.100m in the capital investment
reserve to fund a new fleet management system. Following on from a tendering
exercise a contract has now been awarded for £0.088m and the scheme has
been built into the capital programme.

e The Authority has approved the purchase of a new time and resource
management (TRM) application (CFO/132/13). The implementation of the
system is in the final stages and in order to gain the full potential from the new
system £0.050m of additional development work has been commissioned. This
work will allow the Service to dynamically manage its staffing resources
effectively and efficiently making optimum use of the functionality available from
the TRM application and the new integrated HR\Payroll solution. The £0.050m
has been funded from one-off savings on the TRM revenue budget.

The revised detailed capital programme is attached as Appendix B (2014/15
Capital Programme) and Appendix C (2014/15-2018/19 Capital Programme) to
this report.

The Authority has received confirmation that its bid for capital grant from the
Transformation Fund of £4.500m to assist with the proposed station merger
initiative has been successful and it has been allocated £4.469m. This award will
be taken into account when members receive future reports on the specific station
merger schemes and the estimated costs and funding of the various schemes. The
letter and grant allocation has been attached to this report as Appendix D.

Use of Reserves:

The analysis in Appendix A2 outlines the £0.863m movement on reserves during
the second quarter of 2014/15, of which £0.612m relates to the planned use of the
capital investment reserve to fund,
e capital schemes, £0.447m (see previous capital table), and
e the cost of parallel running of the current and new HR/TRM systems in
2014/15 as part of the planned transfer strategy, £0.165m.
The general revenue reserve has remained unchanged at £2.000m.

It is recommended that the £1.600m revenue saving identified in this report is
allocated to increase the capital investment reserve. The capital investment
reserve will provide a funding stream to support the proposed future station merger
programme and to support the Authority strategy of aiming to minimise borrowing
costs.

Page 14



(C)_Treasury Management

19.

20.

21.

22.

The Authority continues to “buy in” Treasury Management from Liverpool City
Council. The following paragraphs reflect Treasury Management activities in the
period April to September 2014/15.

Prospects For Interest Rates;

Growth rebounded during 2013 and the first quarter of 2014 to surpass
expectations, propelled by recovery in consumer spending and the housing
market. Growth prospects remain strong for the rest of 2014 and unemployment is
expected to fall.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) was forecast to hold bank rate at 0.5%
throughout 2014 but with the possibility of an increase in early 2015 should the
recovery prove stronger than expected. However, the sharp fall in UK inflation and
further weakening in the Euro zone indicates that any move will be delayed until
later in 2015. Base rate is expected to remain at 0.5% for the rest of the financial
year 2014/15.

It was expected that there would be upward pressure on longer term rates due to a
high volume of debt issuance and improved prospects of a return to economic
growth. However, this has been offset by a continued demand for safe haven
instruments whilst there is political unrest in various places around the world. Long
term PWLB rates have fallen by 0.4% during the first half of the year but are
expected to recover slightly later in the year.

The strategy indicated that the overall structure of interest rates whereby short
term rates are lower than long term rates was expected to remain throughout
2014/15. In this scenario, the strategy would be to reduce investments and borrow
for short periods and possibly at variable rates when required.

Capital Borrowings and the Portfolio Strategy;

The borrowing requirement comprises the expected movements in the Capital
Financing Requirement and reserves plus any maturing debt which will need to be
re-financed. The Authority does not envisage that any new long term borrowing
will be required in 2014/15. Current market conditions continue to be unfavourable
for any debt rescheduling.

Annual Investment Strategy;

The investment strategy for 2014/15 set out the priorities as the security of capital
and liquidity of investments. Investments are made in accordance with DCLG
Guidance and CIPFA Code of Practice. Investments are made in sterling with an
institution on the counterparty list.

The credit ratings and individual limits for each institution within the categories of
investments to be used by the Authority in 2014/15 are as follows:

UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF) Unlimited
UK Local Authorities (each) Unlimited
Part Nationalised UK banks £4m
Money Market Funds (AAA rated) £3m

Page 15



UK Banks and Building Societies (A- or higher rated) £2m
Foreign banks registered in the UK (A or higher rated) £2m

Extreme caution has been taken in placing investments to ensure security of funds
rather than rate of return. The use of deposit accounts with high rated or
nationalised banks and AAA rated money market funds has enabled reasonable
returns in a low interest rate environment. In the period 1 April to 30" September
2014 the average rate of return achieved on average principal available was
0.69%. This compares with an average seven day deposit (7 day libid) rate of
0.35%.

The Authority had investments of £29.1m as at 27" September 2014:

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS END OF SEPTEMBER 2014

Institution :;fi:'; MM Fund* Bcf'm"'; r/ le::::?::f
£ £ £
Deutsche/DGLS/State Street |AAA 1,100,000
lgnis Liquidity Fund AAA 3,000,000
Goldman Sachs AAA 3,000,000
Morgan Stanley AAA 3,000,000
Prime Rate AAA 3,000,000
Natwest Instant Access A 4,000,000}
Nationwide BS A 2,000,000
Skipton Building Society Unrated 1,000,000
Newcastle Building Society |Unrated 1,000,000
Nottingham Building Soc Unrated 1,000,000
HBOS 12 Month FTD A 4,000,000
Close Brothers A 2,000,000
West Brom B Soc Unrated 1,000,000
Totals 13,100,000} 10,000,000] 6,000,000
Total Current Investments 29,100,000

*MM Fund - Money Market Funds -these are funds that spread the risk
associated with investments over a wide range of credit worthy institutions.

23. External Debt Prudential Indicators;
The external debt indicators of prudence for 2014/15 required by the Prudential
Code were set in the strategy as follows:

Authorised limit for external debt: £80 million
Operational boundary for external debt: £44 million

Against these limits, the maximum amount of debt reached at any time in the first
half of the financial year 2014/15 was £43.6 million.

24. Treasury Management Prudential Indicators;

Page 16



The treasury management indicators of prudence for 2014/15 required by the
Prudential Code were set in the strategy as follows:

a) Interest Rate Exposures
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 50%

The maximum that was reached in the first half of the financial year
2014/15 was as follows:

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 0%

b) Maturity Structure of Borrowing
Upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of borrowing were set and
the maximum and minimum that was reached for each limit in the first half
of the financial year 2014/15 was as follows: -

Maturity Period Upper Lower | Maximum | Minimum
Limit Limit
Under 12 months 80% 0% 3% 2%
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0% 5% 2%
24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 8% 6%
5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 9% 8%
10 years and above 85% 0% 78% 77%

c) Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days
The limit for investments of longer than 364 days was set at £2 million for
2014/15. No such investments have been placed during 2014/15.

(D) Internal Audit

25.

The Authority continues to “buy in” Internal Audit services from Liverpool City
Council. Most audit work is carried out in the second part of the year to fit in with
service work demands and provide relevant data for the year-end audit. Since the
last financial review report one audit has been completed relating to procurement.
Although the audit found the control and compliance processes were adequate the
report made a number of recommendations all of which have been accepted and
implemented by officers. This audit report will be presented to the next Audit Sub-
Committee along with any other completed audit reports for member’s
consideration.

(E)_Monitoring of Financial Processes

26.

To ensure the internal financial processes of the Authority are operating effectively,
a suite of performance indicators have been developed that now feed into the
financial review. At present these indicators include:

¢ Payment of invoices,

e Raising Invoices, and

e Debtors

Page 17



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Prompt payment of invoices

In July 2009 the Authority joined the Prompt Payment Code (PPC). The PPC gives
notice to suppliers of the Authority’s commitment to pay promptly. In the current
economic climate the Government is keen for all businesses and local authorities
to pay suppliers promptly. Information about the prompt payment of undisputed
invoices, paid within 30 days of receipt invoices are reported monthly (LP1128)

The performance for this financial year is as follows:

15%tr ~ 2™gtr  3"gtr  4"Matr

Invoices paid within 30 days of
receipt 100% 100%

Number of Invoices processed 2,323 2,421

The target for prompt payment in 2014/15 is 100%. The second quarter’s results
confirm the Service continues to respond quickly and efficiently to requests for
payment from suppliers.

Processing Sales Invoices
A key performance indicator in relation to the processing of income generation is
the time it takes to generate a sales invoice. The current target is 100% within 2
working days from the request to raise an invoice. The performance for this
financial year is as follows:

1%%gtr  2"gtr  3"qgtr  4™Mqtr

Sales Invoice production 100% 100%
Number of Sales Invoices raised 250 211

Debt Recovery

A key performance indicator in assessing the service’s effectiveness in collecting
income due is to review the change in the age and value of debt over a period of
time. A comparison of the number and value of aged debts over for the second
quarter can be summarised as follows:

Number of debts 60 days+
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
£000 £000 £000

July 47 41 33

Aug 46 37 31

Sept 41 42 46
Value of debts 60 days+

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
£000 £000 £000

July 42 48 76
Aug 69 22 54
Sept 68 70 113

Page 18



32. The Service raises approximately 1,100 sales invoices per year and this can
equate to income of between £2m - £3.5m. The profile of accounts raised varies
month by month and from year to year. It therefore can lead to significant
variations when comparing the same month over a period of time. Considerable
effort is made to actively engage with customers as part of the drive to improve the
aged debt profile of the Authority.

33. Debtor accounts under £5,000 may be written off by Deputy Chief Executive. One
account has been approved for write-off under delegated powers for £340.00 (excl.
VAT) following advice from the litigation service.

Equality and Diversity Implications

34. There are no equality and diversity implications contained within this report.

Staff Implications

35. None directly related to this report.

Legal Implications

36. None directly related to this report.

Financial Implications & Value for Money

37. See Executive Summary.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

38. None directly related to this report.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

39. The achievement of actual expenditure within the approved financial plan and
delivery of the expected service outcomes is essential if the Service is to
achieve the Authority’s Mission.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CFO0/011/14 “MFRA Budget and Financial Plan 2014/2015-2018/2019” Authority 27"
February 2014.

CFO/097/14 “Financial Review 2014/15- April to June” Policy and Resources
Committee 2" September 2014.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Page 19



JCC Joint Control Centre

SHQ Service Headquarters

FM Facilities Management

ICT Information and communications technology
SRT Search and Rescue Team

MPC Monetary Policy Committee

CPI Consumer Price Index

PWLB Public Works Loans Board

PPC Prompt payment code

Page 20



APPENDIX A1

2014/15 REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT SUMMARY

Base Qtr 1 Reserve Vire- Qtr 2
Actual SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget | Budget Draw- ments Budget
2013/14 2014/15 | 2014/15 down 2014/15
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
66,051 (Fire Service 66,938| 67,541 863 63 68,467
523|Corporate Management 591 589 0 -30 559
0(2012 - 13 B/fwd Dynamic Staff Saving -154 -154 0 79 -75
0(2013 - 14 New Dynamic Staff Saving -260 -260 0 32 -228
0(2014 - 15 New Dynamic Staff Saving -150 -150 0 150 0
66,574 66,965| 67,566 863 294 68,723
0[{Contingency for Pay/Price Changes 843 843 0 -294 549
66,574 TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE 67,808| 68,409 863 0 69,272
-86|Interest on Balances -372 -372 0 0 -372
66,488(NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 67,436| 68,037 863 0 68,900
Contribution to /(from) reserves
Spate / Other Emergency Related Reserves
-250 Insurance Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
0 Catastrophe Reserve 0 -500 0 0 -500
Specific Projects
1,250 Smoothing Reserve -2,396 -5,055 0 0 -5,055
-181 Severance Reserve 0 0 -15 0 -15
309 Il Health Penalty Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
100 SMG Reserve 0 -100 0 0 -100
-1,559 Capital Investment Reserve -539 5,131 -612 0 4,519
241 PFI Annuity Reserve -19 -26 0 0 -26
0 Equality / DDA Investment Reserve 0 -225 0 0 -225
0 Firefighter Safety Investment Reserve -200 -200 0 0 -200
0 Facing the Future Challenge Reserve 0 -800 0 0 -800
-100 Community Sponsorship Reserve 0 0 -7 0 -7
135 Equipment Reserve 0 0 -80 0 -80
-47 FSD Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
-33 Healthy Living / Olympic Legacy 0 0 -45 0 -45
-4 Water Rescue Reserve 0 -4 0 0 -4
0 Inflation Reserve 0 -1,000 0 0 -1,000
Ringfenced Reserves
6 F.R.E.E. Reserve 0 0 -3 0 -3
199 Princes Trust Reserve 0 -64 0 0 -64
4 Community Youth Team Reserve 0 0 -5 0 -5
-3 Beacon Peer Project Reserve 0 0 -12 0 -12
1 Innovation Fund Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
0 Regional Control Reserve 0 -18 0 0 -18
85 Energy Reseve 74 74 -75 0 -1
-7 St Helens District Reserve 0 0 -9 0 -9
87 New Dimensions Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
233 -3,080 -2,787 -863 0 -3,650
0|Appropriation to / From General Fund 0 -894 0 0 -894
66,721|BUDGET REQUIREMENT 64,356| 64,356 0 0 64,356
-39,963|Government Funding / NNDR Top Up -36,545| -36,545 0 0 -36,545
-55|Local NNDR Forecast -3,974 -3,974 0 0 -3,974
0[Collection Fund Deficit -407 -407 0 0 -407
-26,703|Precept Income -23,430| -23,430 0 0 -23,430
-66,721 -64,356| -64,356 0 0 -64,356

Page 21




Budgeted Movement on Reserves 2014/15

APPENDIX A2

Original Qtr 1
Opening | Budget | Drawdown Qtr 2 Closing
Balance | Planned & Drawdown | Balance
Use changes
[Earmarked Reserves £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bellwin Reserve 147 0 147
Insurance Reserve 370 0 370
Emergency planning Reserve 75 0 75
Catastrophe Reserve 1,000 0 -500 500
Specific Projects
Smoothing Reserve 6,750 -2,396 -2,659 1,695
Severance Reserve 721 0 -15 706
lll Health Penalty Reserve 908 0 908
Recruitment Reserve 1,000 0 1,000
SMG Reserve 100 0 -100 0
Capital Investment Reserve 4,277 -539 5,670 -612 8,796
PFl Annuity Reserve 2,251 -19 -7 2,225
Equality / DDA Investment Reserve 510 0 -225 285
Firefighter Safety Investment Reserve 1,000 -200 800
Facing the Future Challenge Reserve 800 0 -800 0
Community Sponsorship Reserve 13 0 -7 6
Equipment Reserve 191 0 -80 111
Contestable Research Fund Reseve 25 0 25
FSD Reserve 6 0 6
Healthy Living / Olympic Legacy 80 0 -45 35
Water Rescue Reserve 5 0 -4 1
Inflation Reserve 1,500 0 -1,000 500
Ringfenced Reserves
F.R.E.E. Reserve 44 0 -3 41
Princes Trust Reserve 343 0 -64 279
Community Youth Team Reserve 58 0 -5 53
Beacon Peer Project Reserve 62 0 -12 50
Innovation Fund Reserve 170 0 170
Regional Control Reserve 18 0 -18 0
Energy Reseve 85 74 -75 84
St Helens District Reserve 15 0 -9 6
New Dimensions Reserve 793 0 793
Total Earmarked Reserves 23,317 -3,080 293 -863 19,667
General revenue Reserve 2,894 -894 0 0 2,000
Total Reserves 26,211 -3,974 293 -863 21,667

Page 22




APPENDIX A3

2014/15 FIRE SERVICE REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT SUMMARY

Base Qtr 1 Reserve Vire- Qtr 2
Actual SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget | Budget Draw- ments Budget
2013/14 2014/15 | 2014/15 down 2014/15
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EMPLOYEES
Uniformed
34,077 Firefighters 34,104 34,171 342 34,513
1,263 Control 1,259 1,259 37 1,296
2,253 Additional Hours 1,285 1,303 2 8 1,313
37,593 TOTAL UNIFORMED| 36,648 36,733 2 387 37,122
APT&C and Manual
8,163 APT&C 8,378 8,756 1 -81 8,676
259 Handymen/Cleaning 288 288 288
93 Catering 106 106 106
540 Transport Maintenance 568 568 568
59 Other Manual 95 95 95
186 Casuals 0 19 19
9,300 TOTAL APT&C/MANUAL 9,435 9,832 1 -81 9,752
Other Employee Expenses
0 Rent & Lodging 1 1 -1 0
149 Allowances 68 91 26 -7 110
5 Removal Expenses 5 5 5
376 Training Expenses 585 616 -49 567
217 Other Expenses 36 32 15 -4 43
15 Staff Advertising 22 22 -7 15
37 Development Expenses 97 97 -20 77
946 Employee Insurance 128 128 18 146
832 MPF Pen Fixed Rate 2,818 2,818 2,818
168 Enhanced pensions 46 46 6 52
8 SSP & SMP Reimbursements -16 -16 -16
109 Catering Expenditure 113 113 8 121
-358 HFRA Capitalisation Payroll 0 0 -730 -730
2,504 TOTAL OTHER EMPLOYEE EXPEND 3,903 3,953 49 -794 3,208
Pensions
1,700 Injury Pension 1,694 1,694 1,694
0 Transfer Values 0 0 0
351 [l Health Ret charges 174 174 174
2,051 TOTAL PENSIONS 1,868 1,868 0 0 1,868
51,448 TOTAL EMPLOYEES| 51,854| 52,386 52 -488 51,950
PREMISES
352 Building Maintenance Repairs 368 339 -21 318
203 Site Maintenance Costs 172 183 10 193
732 Energy 759 759 -1 758
108 Rent 76 76 5 -1 80
1,061 Rates 1,195 1,195 -28 1,167
232 Water 264 264 -13 251
58 Fixtures 66 60 -2 58
152 Contract Cleaning 157 157 -3 154
47 Insurance 61 61 -9 52
2,945 TOTAL PREMISES 3,118 3,094 5 -68 3,031
TRANSPORT
400 Direct Transport 330 334 14 348
26 Tunnel Fees 29 29 29
168 Operating Lease 198 199 3 202
493 Other Transport Costs 584 585 -85 500
154 Car Allowances 133 132 -22 110
365 Insurance 344 344 9 353
1,606 TOTAL TRANSPORT|  1,618] 1,623 0 -81 1,542

Page 23




APPENDIX A3

2014/15 FIRE SERVICE REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT SUMMARY

Base Qtr 1 Reserve Vire- Qtr 2
Actual SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget | Budget Draw- ments Budget
2013/14 2014/15 | 2014/15 down 2014/15
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
SUPPLIES & SERVICES
43 Administrative Supplies 42 64 -7 57
274 Operational Supplies 292 305 58 363
6 Hydrants 20 20 20
65 Consumables 74 75 -5 70
103 Training Supplies 154 165 -18 147
119 Fire Prevention Supplies 138 140 21 -10 151
43 Catering Supplies 31 47 3 50
316 Uniforms 358 363 -23 340
113 Printing & Stationery 170 164 -23 141
14 Operating Leases 2 2 1 3
729 Professional Fees/Service 883 889 9 341 1,239
660 Communications 664 684 -1 673
25 Postage 35 35 -5 30
8 Command/Control 4 4 7 1
305 Computing 387 390 165 -190 365
251 Medicals 306 310 8 318
90 Travel & Subsistence 84 88 1 15 104
74 Grants/Subscriptions 110 113 -10 103
23 Advertising 15 15 8 -2 21
45 Furniture 44 45 80 -4 121
81 Laundry 81 81 81
32 Insurances 46 46 -12 34
27 Hospitality 16 19 -11 8
3,446 TOTAL SUPPLIES & SERVICES 3,956 4,064 2384 102 4,450
AGENCY SERVICES
75 Super Fund Admin 73 73 73
1,453 ICT Service Provider 1,466 1,466 29 1,495
203 Third Party Payments (FSN) 197 197 -2 195
455 ICT Managed Suppliers 544 544 544
2276 PFI Unitary Charges 2633 2,640 2,640
4,462 TOTAL AGENCY SERVICES 4,913 4,920 0 27 4,947
CENTRAL EXPENSES
317 Finance & Computing 278 279 103 382
317 TOTAL CENTRAL EXPENSES 278 279 0 103 382
CAPITAL FINANCING
5,197 PWLB Debt Charges 5,895 5,895 5,895
75 MRB Debt Charges 76 76 76
23 Finance Lease Debt Charges 0 0 0
3,327 Revenue Contribution to Capital 775 1,304 522 790 2,616
8,622 TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING 6,746 7,275 522 790 8,587
72,846 TOTAL EXPENDITURE| 72,483| 73,641 863 385 74,889
INCOME
3,759 Specific Grants 3,585 3,696 99 3,795
16 Sales 0 0 0
1,581 Fees & Charges 832 1,111 123 1,234
16 Reinforcing moves 5 5 5
281 Rents etc 448 448 448
754 Recharges Secondments 456 521 521
218 Contributions 100 200 100 300
107 Recharges Internal 114 114 114
27 Other Income 5 5 5
36 UKRO Income 0 0 0
6,795 TOTAL INCO&E, o 55P45 6,100 0 322 6,422
YT
66,051(NET EXPENDITURE 66,938 67,541 863 63 68,467




APPENDIX A4

2013/14 CORPORATE SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT

SUMMARY
Base Qtr 1 Reserve Vire- Qtr 2
Actual SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget | Budget Draw- ments Budget
2013/14 2014/15 | 2014/15 down 2014/15
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EXPENDITURE

Finance & Legal costs

79 Finance Officer 79 79 79

93 Legal Officer 84 84 2 86
Democratic Rep (1020)

19 - Travel & Subsistence 48 438 -4 44

4 - Conference fees 15 15 15

239 - Members Allowances 230 228 228

1 - Telephones 2 2 1 3

0 - Training 1 1 1

0 - Hospitality 3 3 3

Central Expenses (1030) 0

16 Bank charges 18 18 -1 17

38 District Audit Fees 68 68 -20 438

34 Subscriptions 43 43 -8 35

523 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 591 589 0 -30 559

Page 25




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Capital Programme 2014/15

APPENDIX B

Qtr 2 Re- QTR 2 Actual to
EXPENDITURE Agz;m;etd BQ;’ 1 . |Phasing of V.QTR 2t Amend- BQLr 2 . | September
9 udge Schemes irements ments udge 2014
£ £ £ £ £ £
BUILDING & LAND PROGRAMME
BLDO001 Roofs & Canopy Replacements 50,000 65,000 -10,000 55,000 720
BLDO004 Concrete Yard Repairs 20,000 28,000 10,000 38,000 5,123
BLD0O05 Tower Improvements 0 9,900 9,900 0
BLDO07 L.E.V. Sys In App Rooms 0 6,700 6,700 4,984
BLDO11 Capital Refurbishment 57,000 57,000 57,000 0
BLD013 Appliance Room Floors 46,500 51,500 51,500 0
BLDO14 Boiler Replacements 0 49,500 49,500 0
BLD016 Community Station Investment 35,500 38,500 38,500 1,469
BLDO17 F.S. Refurbishment Toxteth 0 0 0 -34,528
BLD018 Conference Faciities H/Q 4,500 4,500 4,500 0
BLD020 5 Year Electrical Test 38,000 150,000 150,000 0
BLD026 Corporate Signage 0 3,000 3,000 2,653
BLDO031 Diesel Tanks 150,000 150,000 150,000 0
BLDO033 Sanitary Accommodation Refurb 50,000 56,000 56,000 4,073
BLD034 Office Accommodation 0 16,000 16,000 13,345
BLDO036 L.L.A.R. Accommodation Formby 300,000 313,500 313,500 2,836
BLDO040 F.S. Refurbishment Whiston 152,500 152,500 -152,500 0 0
BLD041 F.S. Refurbishment Aintree 277,000 280,000 -280,000 0 0
BLD042 St Helens Conversion 507,000 511,000 -400,000 111,000 19,963
BLD044 Asbestos Surveys 0 15,500 15,500 0
BLD045 City Centre Community Facility 70,000 79,500 79,500 0
BLDO055 F.S. Refurbishment Bromborough 310,000 322,500 -310,000 12,500 9,570
BLDO056 F.S. Refurbishment Eccleston 338,000 338,000 -338,000 0 0
BLDO057 F.S. Refurbishment Crosby 375,000 375,000 -375,000 0 0
BLD058 H.V.A.C. Heating, Vent & Air Con 92,000 92,000 92,000 0
BLD059 Llar Accomodation Eccleston 237,500 237,500 -237,500 0 0
BLD060 D.D.A. Compliance Work 0 307,000 307,000 1,250
BLDO061 Lighting Conductors Surge Protectors 50,000 55,000 55,000 0
BLD062 Emergency Lighting 0 26,400 26,400 0
BLDO063 F.S. Refurbishment Kirby 326,000 326,000 -326,000 0 0
BLD065 MACC Server Room Extension 0 4,000 4,000 0
BLDO067 Gym Equipment Replacement 25,000 76,500 76,500 12,573
BLD068 SHQ Joint Control Room 0 3,514,300 1,000( 421,000 3,936,300 2,241,462
BLD069 F.S. Refurbishment Allerton 341,000 341,000 -341,000 0 0
BLDO70 Workshop Enhancement 0 350,000 350,000 390
BLD071 Station Refresh 450,000 486,000( -300,000 186,000 35,194
BLDO72 SHQ Tower 75,000 249,000 249,000 228,750
BLD073 SHQ Museum 75,000 150,000 150,000 2,818
BLD0O75 Llar Accomodation Newton Le Willows 0 65,000 65,000 65,000
CONO001 Energy Conservation Non-Salix 25,000 33,500 33,500 0
CONO002 Energy Conservation Salix 0 0 75,000 75,000 0
DSO001 D.S.O. Cleaning Equipment 6,000 8,500 8,500 0
EQUO002 Fridge/Freezer Rep Prog 10,500 22,000 22,000 3,290
EQUO003 Furniture Replacement Prog 10,500 22,500 22,500 1,995
TDAOO1 Fire House Refurbishment 80,000 80,000 80,000 0
Total 4,584,500/ 9,519,300| -3,060,000 76,000 421,000/ 6,956,300 2,622,929
FIRE SAFETY
FIR002 Smoke Alarms (H.F.R.A.) 500,000 500,000 500,000 125,806
FIR005 Installation Costs (H.F.R.A.) 730,000 730,000 730,000 0
FIR006 Deaf Alarms (H.F.R.A.) 49,000 49,000 49,000 0
FIR007  Replacement Batteries (H.F.R.A.) 2,000 2,000 2,000 759
FIR009 Risk Management Residential Blocks 200,000 200,000 200,000 0
Total 1,481,000 1,481,000 0 0 0 1,481,000 126,565
Page 27

Page 1 of 3




|BUILDING & LAND PROGRAMME

APPENDIX B
Capital Programme 2014/15
Qtr 2 Re- QTR 2 Actual to
EXPENDITURE Agz;‘;‘;'id Bﬁ;’glt Phasing of Vizreﬁts Amend- nggi . | September
Schemes ments 2014
£ £ £ £ £ £

ICT
FINOO1  F.M.I.S. Replacement 0 233,000 -2,700 230,300 91,035
IT002 I.C.T. Software 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
ITO03 I.C.T. Hardware 91,000 106,800 106,800 49,916
ITO05 I.C.T. Servers 205,000 303,500 303,500 29,276
ITO18 I.C.T. Network 54,000 71,500 71,500 30,125
IT026 I.C.T. Operational Equipment 12,000 14,000 14,000 6,475
IT027 I.C.T. Security 2,000 6,000 6,000 0
1T028 System Development Portal 112,000 129,900 129,900 923
ITO30 I.C.T. Projects / Upgrades 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
ITO36 Portable Storage Media 0 27,000 27,000 0
ITO39 Estates Management System 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
ITO40 Analytical Tool CFS Work 90,000 90,000 90,000 59,180
1T043 E Recruitment System 0 700 700 0
ITO46 TRM System 0 200,000 52,700 252,700 76,282
IT047 Legl Case Management system 0 4,500 4,500 0
IT049 Wireless Rollout 0 9,000 9,000 0
ITO50 Community Protection System 30,000 30,000 30,000 0

JCC ICT scheme 0 928,000 29,000 957,000 530,702
ITO55 C3i C&C Comms and Info system 15,000 25,000 25,000 21,074
ITO56 PFI Access Door System 18,000 18,000 18,000 0
ITO57 Fleet Management System 0 0 87,500 87,500 0
RCO003  Corporate Gazateeer 0 9,500 9,500 0

Total 656,000| 2,233,400 0 137,500 29,000 2,399,900 894,988
OPERATIONAL EQUIP. & HYDRANTS
OPS001 Gas Tight Suits Other Ppe 40,000 50,000 50,000 0
OPS003 Hydraulic Rescue Equipment 65,000 93,000 93,000 0
OPS005 Resuscitation Equipment 0 27,500 27,500 0
OPS009 Pod Equipment 50,000 119,000 119,000 0
OPS011 Thermal Imaging Cameras 10,000 11,500 11,500 0
OPS022 Improvements To Fleet 20,000 36,000 36,000 35,532
OPS024 BA equipment / Comms 502,000 723,500 723,500 170,417
OPS026 Rope Replacement 20,000 35,000 35,000 3,696
OPS027 Light Portable Pumps 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
OPS031 Cctv Equipment/Drone 32,000 32,000 32,000 0
OPS033 Marine Rescue Launch 0 5,000 5,000 0
OPS038 Water Delivery System 0 62,000 62,000 0
OPS039 Water Delivery Hoses 0 49,000 49,000 14,474
OPS049 Bulk Foam Attack Equipment 48,000 48,000 48,000 0
OPS052 DEFRA FRNE Water Rescue Grant 0 20,000 20,000 1,718
HYDO001 Hydrants (New Installations) 18,500 18,500 18,500 1,233
HYDO002 Hydrants (Rep Installations) 18,500 20,100 20,100 0

Total 844,000/ 1,370,100 0 0 0| 1,370,100 227,070
VEHICLES
VEH001 WHI'S Purchased 750,000 750,000 750,000 0
VEHO002 Ancilliary Vehicles 677,200 876,200 876,200 16,940
VEH004 Special Vehicles 1,001,000 1,012,500 1,012,500 0
VEHO005 Vehicles water Strategy 0 29,000 29,000 0
VEHO006 Motorcycle Response 44,000 44,000 44,000 0
WORO001 Workshop Equipment 0 32,000 32,000 8,685

Total 2,472,200 2,743,700 0 0 0| 2,743,700 25,625

Grand Total 10,037,700 17,347,500( -3,060,000 213,500/ 450,000| 14,951,000 3,897,176

Page 28

Page 2 of 3




BUILDING & LAND PROGRAMME |

Page 3 of 3

APPENDIX B
Capital Programme 2014/15
Qtr 2 Re- QTR 2 Actual to
EXPENDITURE Agz;m;etd BQ;’ 1 . |Phasing of V.QTR 2t Amend- BQLr 2 . | September
9 udge Schemes | "oe™S | ments udge 2014
£ £ £ £ £ £
FINANCING
Capital Receipts
Sale of Toxteth FS 250,000 250,000 0 0 250,000 243,956
Sale of Formby LLAR House 350,000 350,000 0 0 350,000 0
Sale of Derby Road 700,000 500,000 0 0 500,000 0
0
R.C.C.0O./ Cap Investment Reserve 0
Cpitalisation of Sals HFRA 730,000 730,000 0 0 730,000 0
It Equipment (IT003) 0 2,300 0 0 2,300 0
Joint Control Room (BLD068) 0 177,300 0 0| 340,000 517,300 0
Two Storey Refresh (BLD074) 0 0 0 1,000 1,000 0
Salix Energy Conservation (CON002) 0 0 0 75,000 75,000 0
JCC IT Works (IT053) Cap Inv Res 0 60,000 0 0| 29,000 89,000 0
FSN Charge for Alarms (FIR002) 50,000 50,000 0 0 50,000 0
Fleet Mgmt System (IT057) Cap Inv Res 0 0 0 78,000 78,000 0
Station Refresh (BLD071) Cap Inv Res 400,000 400,000 0 0 400,000 0
SHQ Museum (BLD073) Cap Inv Res Ye 75,000 75,000 0 0 75,000 0
Fire Risk Mgmt (FIR009) Fire Safety Res 200,000 200,000 0 0 200,000 0
Planning Performnce Mgmt (IT040) Cap 50,000 50,000 0 0 50,000 0
DDA Compliance works (BLD068) Cap | 0 225,000 0 0 225,000 0
Training Tower HQ (BLD072) Cap Inv R{ 0 64,000 0 0 64,000 0
Fleet Mgmt System (IT057) Cap Inv Res 0 0 0 9,500 9,500 0
TRM System (IT046) 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 0
Grant 0
(Capital Grant) Fire Control Grant 0 700,000 0 0 700,000 0
(Capital Grant) DCMS 133,000 133,000 0 0 133,000 0
(Capital Grant) Police Grant 0| 1,752,000 0 0| 81,000/ 1,833,000 989,980
0
Capital Grant CSR07 (1,728,900) (BLO 1,243,966| 1,243,966 0 0 1,243,966 1,243,966
Total Non Borrowing| 4,181,966 6,962,566 0 213,500 450,000/ 7,626,066 2,477,902
Borrowing Requirement
Unsupported Borrowing 5,855,734 10,384,934| -3,060,000 0 0] 7,324,934 1,419,274
Borrowing| 5,855,734| 10,384,934 -3,060,000 0 0| 7,324,934| 1,419,274
Total Funding| 10,037,700| 17,347,500( -3,060,000 213,500/ 450,000| 14,951,000 3,897,176
Page 29




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Approved Authority Capital Progamme for 2014/2015 - 2018/2019

APPENDIX C

: : Total Cost | 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Capital Expenditure £ £ £ £ £ £
Building/Land 16,151,300 | 6,956,300 | 7,991,000 455,500 352,000 396,500
Fire Safety 6,599,000 | 1,481,000 | 1,281,000 | 1,279,000 | 1,279,000 | 1,279,000
ICT 4,664,900 [ 2,399,900 652,000 531,000 556,000 526,000
Operational Equipment & Hydrants 1,913,100 | 1,370,100 57,000 352,000 67,000 67,000
Vehicles 7,782,300 | 2,743,700 | 1,383,800 | 1,543,800 | 1,212,000 899,000
Ependiture 37,110,600 | 14,951,000 | 11,364,800 | 4,161,300 | 3,466,000 | 3,167,500
2014/15 - 2018/19 Qtr 1 Approved Programme 33,347,100 | 17,347,500 [ 5,204,800 | 4,161,300 | 3,466,000 | 3,167,500
Q2 Current to Q1 Change 3,763,500 | (2,396,500)| 6,160,000 0 0 0
Q2 Movements Explained by:
Re-phasing into 2015/16 0| (3,060,000)| 3,060,000
Budget Amendment
Prescot FS New Build (CFO/095/14) 3,100,000 0| 3,100,000
JCC Build (CFO/109/14) 421,000 421,000
JCC Build 1,000 1,000
Energy Conservation Salix Schemes 75,000 75,000
Fleet Management System 87,500 87,500
Time & Resource Mgt ICT System 50,000 50,000
JCC Scheme - ICT works 29,000 29,000
Q2 Movement| 3,763,500 | (2,396,500)| 6,160,000 0 0 0
Financing Available To£ta| 201;:1115 2013/16 2013/17 2015/18 2013/19
Capital Receipts 1,875,000 | 1,100,000 275,000 500,000 0 0
RCCO 3,962,800 842,800 780,000 780,000 780,000 780,000
DDA Investment Reserve 225,000 225,000
Capital Reserve 2,178,300 | 1,348,300 830,000
Firefighter Safety Investment Reserve 200,000 200,000
Grants 3,846,966 | 2,076,966 | 1,770,000 0 0 0
External Contributions 1,833,000 | 1,833,000 0 0 0 0
Total Non Borrowing| 14,121,066 | 7,626,066 | 3,655,000 | 1,280,000 780,000 780,000
Unsupported Borrowing 22,989,534 | 7,324,934 | 7,709,800 | 2,881,300 | 2,686,000 | 2,387,500
Total Funding| 37,110,600 | 14,951,000 | 11,364,800 | 4,161,300 | 3,466,000 | 3,167,500
Q1 Funding Level for 2014/15 - 2018/19 Programme 33,347,100 | 17,347,500 | 5,204,800 | 4,161,300 | 3,466,000 | 3,167,500
Q2 to Q1 Change 3,763,500 | (2,396,500)( 6,160,000 0 0 0
Funding Change Explained by:
RCCO 60,500 60,500
Reserves 1,352,000 522,000 830,000
Capital Receipts 500,000 500,000
Grants 1,770,000 1,770,000
External Contributions 81,000 81,000
Unsupported Borrowing 0| (3,060,000)] 3,560,000 | (500,000)
Q2 Movement| 3,763,500 | (2,396,500)| 6,160,000 0 0 0

Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



APPENDIX D

Penny Mordaunt MP
Parliamentary Under Secretary of State

Departme-r:]t fOI’ Department for Communities and Local
Communities and Government
Local Government 4th Floor, Fry Building

2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF
Clir Dave Hanratty

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority Tel: 0303 444 3459

Dave.hanratty@Iliverpool.gov.uk Fax: 020 7821 0635 -
E-Mail: penny.mordaunt@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Copy: www.gov.uk/dclg

Dan Stephens CFO

danstephens@merseyfire.gov.uk 17 October 2014

Fire Transformation Fund 2015-16: outcome of the competitive bid process
Dear Colleague,

| write to advise you on the outcome of your bids for fire and rescue transformation funding
for 2015-16.

The funds are to deliver the types of transformative change identified by the Government
in its Spending Round 2013 document, as well as opportunities identified by Sir Ken
Knight in his independent review of efficiencies in the fire and rescue sector.

| am pleased to be able to inform you that your medium lot bid has been successful, with
£4.47 million of the requested £4.50 million being awarded.

e £4,468,500 to merge existing stations into three new efficient fire stations, while
protecting front line services by the introduction of on-call (retained) firefighter
crewing at the three new sites. In addition the new sites will be shared with police
and ambulance services.

The Department has today published a list of the winning bids on our web-site, also
attached as a separate annex to this letter.

Payments of funds are expected to be made early in the financial year. As the funds are a
key plank of the support which Government is giving to fire and rescue authorities to help
them drive efficiencies and transformation change, we will want to judge the effectiveness
of the funding and also to encourage project progress. The Department would therefore
welcome an update on project progress at six monthly intervals.

To provide further impetus, transparency and good-practice sharing on transformative
change associated with the funds, | would also encourage successful authorities to
regularly place brief updates on progress on their own websites.

The Department will write to you again nearer that time to advise on payment details and
the progress update form.

| am copying this letter to your Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive.

NV

PENNY MORDAUNT MP

Page 33


mailto:Dave.hanratty@liverpool.gov.uk
mailto:danstephens@merseyfire.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/dclg
iancummins
Sticky Note
Accepted set by iancummins

iancummins
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX D


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Transformation Fund - Annex A APPENDIX D

Avon Fire

Project to merge two fire stations into a one. Will produce ongoing efficiencies while
maintaining fire cover and improving community safety provision to the public.

£1.05M

Bedfordshire Fire

Project to deliver a more efficient and robust on-call service to meet the changing needs of
the local community and service.

£0.31 M

Buckinghamshire Fire

Project to merge two fire stations and a police site into a modern joint facility. Will enable
improved operational and support function collaboration.

£2.84 M

Cambridgeshire Fire

A collaborative project with both Bedfordshire and Devon and Somerset fire and rescue
authorities to further develop a web cloud ready service for on-call firefighter recruitment.

£1.45M

Cheshire Fire

To fund a safety and life-skills centre to educate those most at risk of accidental death or
injury, focusing on prevention and protection as an efficient use of fire service resource to
benefit the local community.

£1.95M

Cleveland Fire

Delivering efficiencies and protecting front line service delivery via building two new
community fire stations while improving crewing arrangements with recruitment of 48 on-call
firefighters.

£2.80 M

Cumbria

This collaborative project will deliver a new Fire, Ambulance and Police centre in Ulverston,
including Library Services and council office facilities to maximise community engagement
potential. In addition a separate accommodation block will enable a day-crew plus system
delivering revenue savings while protecting frontline services through a more efficient
crewing arrangement.

£4.68 M

Derbyshire Fire

Project to build a new joint police and fire headquarters enabling shared support services
and improved partnership working benefiting ther local community.

£1.50 M

Devon & Somerset Fire

A project with both Kent and Essex fire and rescue authorities to establish a procurement
hub leading towards a national procurement capability for the sector.

£0.37 M

Durham Fire

This collaborative project will build joint emergency services stations at Barnard Castle and
Durham City. Barnard Castle will also house the local Mountain Rescue Team making the
shared site the first “Quad-Service” in the country.

£3.78 M

Essex Fire

Essex leads a syndicate of nine fire and rescue authorities establishing an insurance
pooling arrangement open to all fire and rescue authorities with additional secondary
insurance to cover extreme events. Efficiencies will be achieved via reduced insurance
costs, whilst continuing to maintain a robust approach to risk management.

£0.22 M

Greater Manchester

A police, fire and ambulance prevention and protection collaboration to create multi-
functional teams via an on-call payment model targeting significant demand factors that
impact across all three services, improving quality of life outcomes for individuals and the

£3.73 M

Greater Manchester

A collaborative protection and prevention project including Salford city council, creating
prevention hubs delivering bespoke support for young people, via evidence-based
interventions to improve quality of life outcomes for individuals and the community.

£0.49 M

Hampshire Fire

The provision of a new joint police and fire service headquarters; plus police co-location at
fire stations and progression of fleet maintenance partnerships, enabling both efficiencies
and closer collaboration.

£2.60 M

Hampshire Fire

Project to transform the way on call services are delivered by using smaller early
intervention vehicles to provide more efficient use of resources, while collaborating with
ambulance services to attend more medical emergencies

£1.39 M

Hereford & Worcester
Fire

Project will merge existing stations into a new fire station, rationalising the estate while
maintaining service level. Develop joint community safety initiatives with the police, enhance
prevention and protection, establish a co-responding pilot with the ambulance service,
provide support to water related incident volunteers and develop Red Cross relations.

£2.38 M

Hereford & Worcester
Fire

Project to co-locate the headquarters functions of both police and fire services via an
extension to the existing West Mercia Police headquarters to achieve back office
efficiencies.

£1.89 M

Hertfordshire

Collaboration project with county council services to re-locate library services in four
Hertfordshire villages to on-call fire stations, with resultant joint-use rationalisation
efficiencies whilst establishing a community friendly platform for prevention and protection
service delivery.

£0.70 M

Kent Fire

Kent will lead a syndicate, with West Sussex and West Yorkshire to upgrade the existing
National Fire Service Emergency Cover Toolkit to a modern, fit for purpose risk modelling
toolkit. This sector led project in collaboration with Chief Fire Officers’ Association will
enable the toolkit to continue to provide an enabler for change.

£0.35 M

Lancashire Fire

A project to convert a fire station to Day Crewing Plus by providing an on-site
accommodation block. This will enable a voluntary shift to this standby cover model, which
will deliver revenue savings while protecting frontline services through this more efficient
crewing arrangement.

£0.57 M

Lancashire Fire

A blue light collaboration project to co-locate fire and ambulance services at a new fire
station, with resultant joint-use efficiencies whilst maintaining fire cover response standards
and providing an opportunity to develop a co-responding scheme with the ambulance
service.

£2.44 M

London Fire

A collaborative project to implement data transfer between fire, ambulance and police
control rooms to support joint incidents. This will raise the efficiency of resolving incidents
and forms part of a long term strategy to increase London fire’s ability to collaborate with its
police and ambulance delivery partners.

£0.76 M

Page 35



iancummins
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX D


Transformation Fund - Annex A

Merseyside Fire

This project merges existing stations into three new efficient fire stations, while protecting
front line services by the introduction of on-call arrangments at the three new sites. In
addition the new sites will be shared with police and ambulance services enabling further
efficiencies and service collaboration.

£4.47 M

North Yorkshire Fire

To build a new efficient and more effective transport and logistics facility as a local invest to
save opportunity, with longer term potential to increase existing blue light back-office
transport services collaboration.

£2.42 M

Northamptonshire

A collaboration project to replace the current fire service incident command unit vehicle with
a purpose built vehicle jointly crewed by police and fire staff; will lead to operational
efficiencies and additional protection and prevention benefits from use for community
engagement.

£0.88 M

Northamptonshire

A project to purchase joint rural response units (Police/ Fire), improving visibility and
accessibility within local communities. Expanding on-call arrangements to include Police
Specials and volunteers and maximising new technology to provide more efficient delivery
model.

£2.28 M

Northumberland

Relocating Hexham Fire station to Hexham Hospital by converting and extending an
existing building, to provide ongoing efficiencies, whilst improving operational response to
the local community and closer working with the ambulance service. In addition the project
will include residence facilities for doctors providing on-call emergency cover at the hospital.

£0.91 M

Oxfordshire

A project with both Lincolnshire and Devon and Somerset fire and rescue authorities to
recruit and train 50 on-call fire fighters to improve protection and prevention and emergency
intervention to local communities.

£0.56 M

South Yorkshire Fire

Co-locating fire and police stations in Maltby with resultant efficiencies, improved community
safety, and strengthed blue light service relationships.

£0.56 M

Staffordshire Fire

A collaborative project to build a new fire station operationally shared with ambulance
services, combined with a life-skills centre to act as a focal point for multi-agency
engagement in respect of protection and preventative programmes.

£3.96 M

Staffordshire Fire

The creation of a tri-service neighbourhood centre in the site of the existing fire station with
specific space for each service plus a shared service area. The project will enhance the
effectiveness and integrated nature of the local emergency services provision whilst
delivering cash and organisational benefits for each of their service partners.

£1.18 M

Suffolk

Co-locating with a mixture of police, county council and ambulance services across seven
building projects with resultant shared use efficiencies. The programme will bring the
number of blue light shared fire stations to 12 out of a total of 35 fire and rescue service

£4.94 M

Surrey

A collaboration with the ambulance service to provide clinical and trauma training for all front
line fire fighters and publicly accessible defibillators at all Surrey fire stations, developing a
scheme that can be adopted nationwide.

£0.34 M

Surrey

A project spanning Surrey and Sussex fire, police and ambulance services to deliver
efficient provision and management of transport functions. This transforational project will
rationalise workshop numbers and associated costs, introducing a single management

£5.96 M

Tyne & Wear Fire

This project will co-locate police and fire services at six fire stations resulting in
rationalisation efficiencies while making communities safer by improved community access
and collaboration.

£0.93 M

Warwickshire

Project will recruit and support 15 on-call firefighters with resultant efficiencies, protection of
front line services and assisting the establishment of two new strategic locations further
improving services to local communities, by enabling firefighter redeployment.

£1.84 M

Wiltshire Fire

Project to support the planned merger between Dorset and Wiltshire FRAs, in particular,
extending Dorset's prevention work to Wiltshire by building a Streetwise Safety Centre and
multi-agency strategic hub in Wiltshire, delivering an additional 20,000 educational visits to
children and vulnerable people each year.

£5.54 M

*Award rounded to the nearest two decimal points.

Page 36




Quarter 2 Write-Offs 2014/15

APPENDIX E

Invoice Invoice Provision ]Customer |Customer Name Line Description Write Off Reason .
Date Number Bad Debt |Code AmouniilcBelWrlttoniGr
List Nett Value VAT |Gross Value
£ £ £
12/10/12 10014700 YES JOP002 DALE DAVID JOPLIN |SPECIAL SERVICE CALL]LITIGATION ADVICE 340.00 68.00 408.00
340.00 68.00 408.00|

‘'mpoderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\9\4\Al100001494\$hew3osju.xls
Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda Item 4

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/116/14
NO:

PRESENTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

RESPONSIBLE KIERAN TIMMINS REPORT IAN CUMMINS

OFFICER: AUTHOR:

OFFICERS

CONSULTED:

TITLE OF REPORT: | TREASURY MANAGEMENT INTERIM REPORT 2014/15

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A: TREASURY MANAGEMENT INTERIM
REPORT 2013/14

Purpose of Report

1. This report ensures that the Authority meets the requirements of the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Authority is required to comply with both Codes
through Regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003). The Codes
require the Authority to review its Treasury Management activities during the year
to ensure they are consistent with its approved Treasury Management Strategy
and have remained within the approved Prudential Indicators. This report meets
that requirement and outlines the Treasury Management activities and
performance for April to September for the financial year 2014/15.

Recommendation

2. That Members note the contents of the report.

Introduction and Background

3. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local Authorities has
been adopted by the Authority and a Treasury Policy Statement incorporated
into Financial Regulations, which are contained within the Authority’s
Constitution, in accordance with the requirements of the Code. The
arrangements for reporting treasury management activities to members are that
the Deputy Chief Executive (DCE) will present a minimum of three reports: -

¢ An Annual Treasury Strategy Report before the start of a financial year.

¢ An interim report during the second half of a financial year, (other
interim reports will be prepared if necessary).

e An annual outturn report by 30" September following the financial year
to which it relates.

Page 39



4. The original Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2014/15 was contained
within the Budget and Financial Plan report CFO/011/14 approved by the
Authority at its meeting on 27" February, 2014. The strategy covered the
following areas:

(a) prospects for interest rates;

(b) capital borrowing and debt rescheduling;
(c) annual investment strategy;

(d) external debt prudential indicators;

(e) treasury management prudential indicators.
() performance indicators;

(g)  treasury management advisers

5.  The Interim Treasury Management Report, attached as Appendix A, constitutes
the interim report for 2014/15. In summary the treasury management activity
has been carried out in compliance with the relevant Codes and Statutes and
within the borrowing and treasury management limits set by the Authority under
the prudential code. Performance indicators are consistent with the Authority’s
approved Treasury Management Strategy.

Equality and Diversity Implications

6. There are no equal opportunity implications in this report.

Staff Implications

7.  None directly related to this report.

Legal Implications

8. This report meets the requirements of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance
and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 paragraph 24 issued under the
Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities.

Financial Implications & Value for Money

9. Borrowing and financing costs at £5.972m make up a significant proportion of
Authority budgets (over 9%). It is vital that this is proactively managed
alongside the investment portfolio to minimise risk.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

10. None directly related to this report.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

Page 40



11.  Sound budgetary management and the delivery of services within the approved
budget contribute to the core value of providing an excellent and affordable
response.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CFO/011/14 “MFRA Budget and Financial Plan 2014/2015 — 2018/2019” Authority
27" February 2014.

CFO/143/10 “Treasury Policy Statement & Management Practices” Audit & VFM
Scrutiny Panel 2" September 2010.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

CIPFA The Charted Institute for Public Finance & Accountancy.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Appendix A
TREASURY MANAGEMENT INTERIM REPORT 2014/15

INTRODUCTION

The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local Authorities has been
adopted by the Authority. The Code requires that Treasury Management activities are
subject to reports to Members. This report represents the interim report for 2014/15.

The strategy for the year was identified in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
2014/15 as part of the Budget Proposals 2014/15 submitted to Members in February 2014.
The strategy covered the following areas:

(a) prospects for interest rates;

(b)  capital borrowing and debt rescheduling;

(c) annual investment strategy;

(d)  external debt prudential indicators;

(e)  treasury management prudential indicators.

() performance indicators;

(g)  treasury management advisers

PROSPECTS FOR INTEREST RATES

Growth rebounded during 2013 and the first quarter of 2014 to surpass expectations,
propelled by recovery in consumer spending and the housing market. Growth prospects
remain strong for the rest of 2014 and unemployment is expected to fall. The Monetary
Policy Committee (MPC) was forecast to hold bank rate at 0.5% throughout 2014 but with
the possibility of an increase in early 2015 should the recovery prove stronger than
expected. However, the sharp fall in UK inflation and further weakening in the Euro zone
indicates that any move will be delayed until later in 2015. Base rate is expected to remain
at 0.5% for the rest of the financial year 2014/15.

It was expected that there would be upward pressure on longer term rates due to a high
volume of debt issuance and improved prospects of a return to economic growth.
However, this has been offset by a continued demand for safe haven instruments whilst
there is political unrest in various places around the world. Long term PWLB rates have
fallen by 0.4% during the first half of the year but are expected to recover slightly later in
the year.

The strategy indicated that the overall structure of interest rates, whereby short term rates
are lower than long term rates, was expected to remain the same throughout 2014/15. In
this scenario, the strategy would be to reduce investments and borrow for short periods
and possibly at variable rates when required.

CAPITAL BORROWINGS AND DEBT RESCHEDULING

The borrowing requirement comprises the expected movements in the Capital Financing
Requirement and reserves plus any maturing debt which will need to be re-financed. The
Authority does not envisage that any new long term borrowing will be required in 2014/15.

Current PWLB lending terms have severely constrained the option to generate savings via

debt rescheduling. A significant rise in long term interest rates is required before
rescheduling of debt is viable. However, interest rate structures are continually monitored

Page 43



10.

11.

for opportunities to generate savings from debt rescheduling. Any rescheduling that takes
place will be reported to Members in monitoring reports.

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The investment strategy for 2014/15 set out the priorities as the security of capital and
liquidity of investments. Investments are made in accordance with CLG Guidance and
CIPFA Code of Practice. Investments are made in sterling with an institution on the
counterparty list and for a maximum of one-year duration.

The diversity of investments has been expanded by the use of deposits with the larger
Building Societies. These deposits combined with investments with the “nationalised”
banks and AAA rated money market funds has enabled reasonable returns in a low
interest rate environment. In the period 1st April to 30 September 2014 the average rate of
return achieved on average principal available was 0.69%. This compares with an average
seven day deposit (7 day libid) rate of 0.35%.

The credit ratings and individual limits for each institution within the categories of
investments to be used by the Authority in 2014/15 are as follows:

UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF) Unlimited
UK Local Authorities (each) Unlimited
Part Nationalised UK banks £4m
Money Market Funds (AAA rated) £3m
UK Banks and Building Societies (A- or higher rated) £2m
Foreign banks registered in the UK (A or higher rated) £2m

The Authority had investments of £29.1m as at the 27 September 2014. Most of which is
due to the carry forward of £18.7m of investments from 2013/14 and the receipt of £20.2m
firefighter pension grant in July 2014. An analysis of the investments is outlined in the table
below:

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS END OF SEPTEMBER 2014

Institution :;fj:'; MM Fund* %am":r’ leu‘al-lr:?::?
£ £ £
Deutsche/DGLS/State Street |AAA 1,100,000
lgnis Liquidity Fund AAA 3,000,000
Goldman Sachs ABA 3,000,000
Morgan Stanley AAA 3.000.000
Prime Rate ABA 3.000,000
Natwest Instant Access A 4,000,000
MNationwide BS A 2,000,000
Skipton Building Society Unrated 1,000,000
Newcastle Building Society Unrated 1,000,000
Nottingham Building Soc Unrated 1,000,000
HBOS 12 Month FTD A 4,000,000
Close Brothers A 2,000,000
West Brom B Soc Unrated 1,000,000
Totals 13,100,000 10,000,000 6,000,000
Total Current investmenis 29,100, 000

MM Fund - Money Market Funds -these are funds that spread the risk
associated with investments over a wide range of credit worthy institutions.

Page 44




12.

13.

14.

15.

EXTERNAL DEBT PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
The external debt indicators of prudence for 2014/15 required by the Prudential Code were
set in the strategy as follows:
Authorised limit for external debt:
Operational boundary for external debt:

£80 million
£44million

Against these limits, the maximum amount of debt that was reached in the period April to
September 2014 was £43.6 million.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
The treasury management indicators of prudence for 2014/15 required by the Prudential
Code were set in the strategy as follows:

a) Interest Rate Exposures
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 50%

The maximum that was reached in the period April to September 2014 was as

follows:
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 0%

b) Maturity Structure of Borrowing

Upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of borrowing were set and the
maximum and minimum that was reached for each limit in the period April to
September 2014 was as follows: -

Maturity Period Upper Lower Maximum | Minimum c)
Limit Limit Actual Actual

Under 12 months 80% 0% 3% 2%

12 months and within 24 months 50% 0% 5% 2%

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 8% 6%

5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 9% 8%

10 years and above 85% 0% 78% 7%

Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days
The limit for investments of longer than 364 days was set at £2 million for 2014/15.
No such investments have been placed in 2014/15.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Authority to set performance
indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over the year. These are
distinct historic indicators, as opposed to the prudential indicators, which are

predominantly forward looking.

The indicators for the treasury function are:

Page 45



16.

17.

18.

Borrowing — the indicator is the average rate of actual borrowing compared to the
average available for the period of borrowing. However, there has been no
borrowing in the period April to September 2014.

Investments — Internal returns compared to the 7 day LIBID rate. The return in the
period April to September 2014 was 0.34% above the benchmark.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ADVISORS
The treasury management service is provided to the Authority by Liverpool City Council.
The terms of the service are set out in an agreed Service Level Agreement. The Council
employs treasury management advisors appointed under a competitive procurement
exercise who provide a range of services which include: -

- Technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues.

- Economic and interest rate analysis.

- Debt services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing.

- Debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio.

- Generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment instruments.

- Credit ratings/market information service comprising the three main credit rating

agencies.

Whilst Liverpool City Council and its advisors provide the treasury function, ultimate
responsibility for any decision on treasury matters remains with the Authority.

CONCLUSION

Treasury Management activity in 2014/15 has been carried out in compliance with the
relevant Codes and Statutes and within the borrowing and treasury management limits set
by the Authority under the prudential code.

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 5

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE: | POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE: 27™" NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/121/14

NO:
PRESENTING DEPUTY CHIEF FIRE OFFICER
OFFICER
RESPONSIBLE DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE | REPORT DIRECTOR OF
OFFICER: AND ORGANISATIONAL | AUTHOR: PEOPLE AND

DEVELOPMENT ORGANISATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

OFFICERS KIERAN TIMMINS DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
CONSULTED: JANET HENSHAW DIRECTOR OF LEGAL SERVICES
TITLE OF REPORT: | VOLUNTARY SEVERANCE GREY BOOK EMPLOYEES

| APPENDICES: |

Purpose of Report

1. To update members on the potential use of Voluntary Severance (VS)
agreements for firefighting staff as a mechanism to achieve the required savings
to meet the ongoing financial challenge faced by the Authority.

Recommendation

2. That Members

a) note the contents of this report and the potential to utilise VS for Grey Book
employees if required as part of the Budget savings options.

b) approve the approach advanced in this report regarding applications for VS
from firefighting staff.

c) delegate responsibility for the management of such applications to the Chief
Fire Officer in the same way as with non-firefighting staff in order to best meet
future staffing requirements.

Introduction and Background

3.  The Authority regularly receives queries from firefighters about the potential
opportunity to take early (enhanced) retirement and/or VS. Whilst this has been
considered in the past it has never been progressed, with the exception of a
small trial in group in 2006, because:-

e The use of natural retirement rates combined with the use of reserves to avoid

compulsory redundancy has meant this approach has not been necessary to
deliver the required savings.

Page 47



There have been legal barriers to offering the same package that can be
offered to staff in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) under the
rules of the Firefighters Pension Scheme (FPS).

The position regarding double accrual means that for most firefighters it would
be expensive to ‘buy out’ service or it would leave them in a compromised
financial position.

The financial challenges faced by the Authority have fundamentally changed
over the course of the current spending review, particularly in relation to staffing
issues and the clear requirement to strive to do the same with less. This has
been bought about in no small part due to the desire of the Authority to seek to
maintain a wholetime crewing model rather than the far more financially
efficient but less effective retained alternative.

The reality is however that for the Authority to maintain a predominantly
wholetime crewing model, the Service, whilst at the same time meeting the
current and future financial challenges must maximise its efficiency and
effectiveness through a flexible and engaged workforce. This reality, in
conjunction with the changes to the FPS, may cause some staff to re-evaluate
their career with the Service leading to them to consider opportunities
elsewhere. This is a position that is recognised and understood by the
Authority.

The scale of the financial challenges faced by the Authority make it increasingly
difficult to deliver a reserves strategy that avoids compulsory redundancy
particularly if, as expected, there are further spending cuts beyond 2015/16.

The Authority therefore agreed to explore the use of VS for firefighters at its
meeting on 26™ June 2014 (CFO/077/14). An email to all staff was sent
seeking expressions of interest on 8" July 2014. To date 64 expressions of
interest have been received.

Statutory Background

Despite Authorities requesting over a number of years that changes are made
to the Firefighter Pension Schemes by the Secretary of State to introduce
similar discretions to those contained within the LGPS that provide for
enhanced severance packages, the appropriate legislation is still in not in force.
Consequently Authorities faced with extreme financial challenges remain
unable to facilitate voluntary early retirement for FPS staff

However recent legal advice received by the Authority, in connection with a
number of other Authorities who are faced with similar challenges has
concluded that it is lawful for a Fire and Rescue Authority to make an enhanced
Redundancy/ termination payment under section 5A(1) of the Fire and Rescue
Services 2004 Act (as amended by the Localism Act 2011).

Page 48



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

In recent budgets and restructuring exercises the offer that the Authority has
made to non-uniformed staff when seeking candidates for voluntary severance
has been twice the statutory minimum. It is possible that the Authority could
make the same offer to firefighting staff The Authority’s advice is very clear
that Authorities would be at risk should they decide to enhance the packages
available beyond that previously paid to those staff employed under the LGPS.
This is because a higher proportion of female staff are employed under those
conditions and so higher payments to Grey Book employees would potentially
expose the Authority to indirect discrimination claims. The level of payment in
respect of any individual is calculated based upon their age and length of
service.

The Authority can now consider voluntary termination through the use of a
Settlement Agreement for all staff who wish to leave the Service and defer their
Pension until their normal retirement age.\What the legal advice does not allow
is for the Authority to grant enhanced Early Retirement for firefighters. It does
however have the discretion to consider enhanced early retirement for staff in
the LGPS.

The first £30,000 of any Settlement Agreement would be tax free.

In line with the Authority policy for consideration of any voluntary severance or
early retirement application there is a need to develop a full business case that
ensures that any such approach is delivers value for money and protects the
public purse,

Next Stages

Members will note that elsewhere on the agenda is the latest quarterly
Financial Review.. That report identifies that the retirement rates of firefighters
has progressed in line with forecasts and the Authority is slightly ahead of
where it had planned to be in delivering savings from staff reductions. Once the
Authority moves beyond 2015/16 the number of expected retirements increases
significantly and members will recall that even if the Authority has to make
further savings, there will still be a need to recruit significant numbers of
firefighters in the mid-term and certainly by the mid 2020’s.

Having examined the applications made it has not been possible to establish a
financial business case to support the use of Voluntary Severance at this time.

Those Employees who have already expressed an interest will be advised that
their application has been registered but it will not be progressed at this time.

Whilst there is no business case for the use of the option at this time it is
considered that voluntary severance may be of use in certain circumstances in
the future and that this option should be available to officers to use in the same
way delegated authority is granted regarding non-firefighting staff (subject to a
business case.)

Page 49



18.

19.

Members have approved a process the use of VER/VS for staff that involved
the preparation of a detailed business case with a positive net present value to
the Authority (the net present value is the net total saving after taking account
of the severance/retirement costs). Any such business case has to be signed
off by the Treasurer, Clerk and the Chief Fire Officer.

Additional Considerations

The Authority in considering its workforce and age profile also has to take
cognisance of its succession planning and development strategies. Whilst the
early release of Grey Book employees would have an immediate impact on the
budgetary planning process, the Authority cannot afford to disregard the
potential loss of knowledge and skills of such an exercise, and so the ability to
solely grant the applications of those employees who meet the criteria has to be
measured against the potential loss of skills, and the age profile of the
remaining workforce. The Chief Fire Officer will therefore give due
consideration to the organisational impact of any Settlement Agreements
should this option ultimately be utilised.

Equality and Diversity Implications

20.

21.

Any Settlement Agreement offer would be made on an equitable basis with
LGPS employees, and open to all employees to apply.

Approval of each application will be based purely on financial viability, and
consequently have no discriminatory bias.

Staff Implications

22.

Whilst the Authority seeks to review it numbers in light of the budgetary
challenges, it must also ensure it retains sufficient knowledge within its
workforce so each application will be considered appropriately in line with
transparent criteria. There is no compulsion on our employees to accept any
offer made; they can withdraw at any time prior to reaching a formal agreement.

Legal Implications

23.

The Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 section 5A(1) provides that:

A relevant fire and rescue authority may do

a) Anything it considers appropriate for the purposes of the carrying-out of
any of its functions (its "functional purposes"),

b) Anything it considers appropriate for purposes incidental to its functional
purposes,

Page 50



24.

25.

(c) Anything it considers appropriate for purposes indirectly incidental to its
functional purposes through any number of removes,

(d) Anything it considers to be connected with-
(i) any of its functions, or
(i) anything it may do under paragraph (a), (b) or (c), and

(e) For a commercial purpose anything which it may do under any of
paragraphs (a) to (d) otherwise than for a commercial purpose.

The legal advice received, enables the Authority to make offers of voluntary
severance to certain Grey Book employees using the powers contained in
section 5A(1) of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004.

The processes and documentation to be adopted are in line with those
previously agreed by the Authority

Financial Implications & Value for Money

26.

27.

28.

Because firefighting can be viewed as a generic role the Authority is achieving
the required reduction in firefighter posts by using natural turnover rates. This is
slightly different from non-uniformed staff that have left under VER/VS since in
those instances their actual posts are deleted or their teams restructured to
deliver savings. There is a direct correlation between the person leaving the
organisation and the saving arising.

In this instance the saving gained through the VS mechanism only represents
the marginal gain in time by which the Authority achieves its required
establishment levels much quicker.

The establishment is currently 764 posts. The financial plan assumes savings
of £3.5m from up to four proposed mergers or station closures. If the Authority
makes a decision to approve these following consideration of the consultation
process this would not be achieved until mid-2015/16. In the meantime the
Authority has planned to use reserves to manage the transition. Post 2015/16
further cuts in public spending are expected. Based on some initial modelling
using Local Government Association (LGA) assumptions it is possible that the
Authority may only be able to afford as few as 500 wholetime firefighters by
2020. Whilst retirement rates are moderate it will still take several years to
reach that total. At this time however natural retirement rates are considered to
be sufficient to deliver savings and therefore a business case cannot be
developed for the individuals who have applied.

For any staff who left under voluntary severance and do not qualify for an
immediate pension there will also be a saving to the public purse. This will be
due to the fact that the pension accrued is deferred and payable at age 60
instead of earlier.

Page 51



Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

29. None contained within this report.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

30. The proposed action ensures that each employee is treated fairly, and within a
transparent process that enables then to make a valid decision in relation to
their future employment.

31. It also offers the Authority another option to make the savings required by the
Comprehensive Sending Review, whilst continuing to avoid compulsory
redundancies

BACKGROUND PAPERS

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Page 52



Agenda Iltem 6

MERSEYSIDE FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/112/14
NO:
PRESENTING DCFO GARRIGAN
OFFICER
RESPONSIBLE LYNN HUGHES REPORT LYNN HUGHES
OFFICER: AUTHOR:
OFFICERS NICK MERNOCK, DEB APPLETON, MYLES PLATT
CONSULTED:
TITLE OF REPORT: | INTRODUCTION OF APPRENTICESHIPS
APPENDICES: APPENDIX A: APPRENTICESHIP JOURNEY
APPENDIX B: APPRENTICESHIP PROGRESSION
ROUTES

Purpose of Report

1.  To request that Members approve the introduction of workplace apprenticeships
within the Service.

Recommendation

2. That Members Approve the introduction of 6 apprenticeships within the Prevention
function.

Introduction and Background

3. An apprenticeship is a job with an accompanying skills development
programme designed by employers in the sector. It allows the apprentice to
gain technical knowledge and real practical experience along with personal
skills required for their immediate job and future career. This includes skills in
Maths, English, ICT as well as thinking skills such as self-management and
independent enquiry. A typical apprenticeship lasts approximately 12 months.

4. Apprenticeships are a high priority for the Government and are one of the ways
of tackling unemployment amongst 16-24 year olds. There are significant
benefits for employers and apprentices, including increased level of staff
motivation and loyalty levels as well as the ability to harness talent.

5. An apprenticeship for the role of Community Safety Advisor enables the
Service to provide a comprehensive training scheme which embeds
organisation values. Appendix 1 outlines the apprenticeship framework and a
detailed account of the apprenticeship journey. There are a number of
progression routes following the conclusion of the Community safety Advisor
apprenticeship including the potential to undertake further level 3
apprenticeships in Firefighting or Protection roles, employment as a

Page 53



community Safety Advisor/Advocate or leaving the Service having gained
valuable experience and a qualification. Appendix 2 outlines the progression
routes. The apprenticeship would be facilitated through a local training provider
who would draw down the funding for off the job training.

The Government have recently introduced traineeships as a pre apprenticeship
for young people. They are designed to provide young people with
employability skills prior to commencing an apprenticeship. They combine work
experience with off the job training which are not paid. This gives the Service
an opportunity to assist young people into employment whilst providing an
opportunity for us to select the most suitable apprentice. This is an avenue the
Service could explore if the Authority approves the introduction of
apprenticeships and after they then become embedded across the Service.

Equality and Diversity Implications

7.

The apprenticeships would be advertised in an open and transparent way
through the National Apprenticeship Service (NAS). They would be selected on
the basis of a competency framework as well as the Authority’s values. The
scheme also raises awareness from underrepresented groups as a career of
choice offering a broad range of opportunities.

Staff Implications

8.

Apprenticeships enable the Authority to build on the work undertaken thus far
with young people through programmes such as Fire Cadets, Princes Trust,
Work Experience and Beacon. Existing staff would be required to deliver some
of the apprenticeship training as well as offer support and guidance. There is
also a requirement to assess competence in the workplace. This would be
achieved through a partnership between the host department and the People
and Organisational Department.

The apprenticeship provides an opportunity to bring talent into the organisation
and assess their suitability for other roles such as operational Firefighters and
Protection staff. Appendix 2 lists progression routes.

Legal Implications

10. Apprentices will be fully inducted to ensure compliance with all legislation

11.

including data protection, health and safety and equality legislation.

Apprentices would require vetting and DSB checks.

Financial Implications & Value for Money

12

Apprenticeships would be employees of the organisation and must be paid at
least the appropriate national minimum wage. It is recommended that they
should be paid £140 per week taking into consideration the advice from NAS.
With on costs and uniform it is expected that in total apprenticeships would

Page 54



cost the Service £41,000. Depending on a range of factors the organisation is
likely to draw down £24,000. The costs will be met from the current
Prevention budget and will align to the 2020 vision for prevention.

13 Training costs are small and are covered in most instances depending on the
age of the apprentice. Funding is drawn down from a Training provider who
will deliver aspects of the training as well as ensure compliance with OFSTED
criteria.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

14 Risks will be mitigated through a number of procedures such as induction
training, lone working policies and direct supervision.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

15 The apprentices will contribute by making a positive difference to the
community in the roles of prevention. By offering meaningful opportunities to
young people the service continues to support our communities.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CFO/111/11 If this report follows on from another, list the previous report(s)

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

MFRA Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority is the physical and legal entity.
When writing reports MFRA is the “object”.

MFRS Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service is the service provided by MFRA.
When writing reports MFRS is the “action”

You are employed by the Authority (MFRA). The job you do forms part
E.G. of the Service (MFRS) provided by the Authority (MFRA).
If in doubt use MFRA.

NAS National Apprenticeship Service

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Merseyside

FIRE & RESCUE

SERVICE

Apprenticeships

Introduction

Apprenticeships provide a real opportunity to build upon the work we do with young people by
offering meaningful employment opportunities. As an employer of choice we are in a position to
engage young people in a core area of our business to positively impact on the community.

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service employ 26 Advocates making a significant difference in the
Community through involvement in a range of activities such as safety in the home, in the
community and on the road.

Recognising the significance and contribution that Advocates make CFOA- National Occupational
Group commissioned a working group to develop a qualification framework that provide
underpinning knowledge of the role as well as a competence qualification to test workplace
performance. This could be utilised for existing staff as well as provided a framework to recruit and
train apprentices. MFRS were actively involved in building the framework and explored the
development of apprenticeships.

There are a number of vacancies in Prevention which will fund 6 apprenticeship posts giving the
organisation an opportunity to determine the suitability of applicants for the long term.

This is an exciting departure which combines our experience of working with young people and an
opportunity to shape our recruitment strategy and talent management process. A Project Board has
been established to provide governance consisting key members of POD and Prevention.

An apprenticeship is a job with an accompanying skills development programme designed by
employers in the sector .It allows the apprentice to gain knowledge and real practical experience
along with personal skills required for their immediate job and future career.

Business Case for Apprenticeships.

There are a wide range of views of the benefits of apprenticeships to employers.

e Because apprenticeships are based in the workplace employers get the skills they really
need. They are vital to the future success, not only of business across the country but also
for a vibrant economy. British Chamber of Commerce

Page 57



e Expand and improve the quality of the apprenticeships programme which would build an
international complete skills base and promote more opportunities for individuals to realise
their potential. Department of Business and Innovation

e Apprenticeships deliver work for young people and adults, enabling them to earn while they
learn in a real job gaining a real qualification and a real future. They help businesses grow
their own talent. Skills Minister

The Learning and Skills Council surveyed businesses on the benefits of hiring an apprentice. This
highlighted a number of benefits:

-Better motivated staff and increased job satisfaction

-Apprentices tend to be more loyal, remaining at their company longer than non-apprentices.

Recruitment and Selection

The process will involve the following steps;

Advert — National Apprenticeship Service website

Shortlisting/ Diagnostic assessments (provider led)

Selection (MFRS)

12 months Training programme

Costs of an apprenticeship

The National Apprenticeships Service (NAS) will fund;

Page 58



16-18 year olds 100% of the training costs (anyone taken before their 19" birthday will be eligible to
receive this training)

19-24 years olds will receive 60% of their training cost from NAS; the remaining 40% is to be covered
by the employer.

The partner Wirral Metropolitan College will deduct approximately 20% which covers administration
costs, quality assurance and OFSTED inspections.

The apprentices will be paid a wage which is £140 per week.

Training will take place by the following means;

: This will happen in the workplace. Apprentices will be managed by a District
Prevention Manager and mentored by an experienced advocate. They will work towards a
level 2 competence qualification in Community Safety assessed through an e-portfolio.

: This will take place at the Training and Development Academy and will be on
average one day a week (Wednesday). The modules will be delivered by subject experts and
follow the syllabus of the Community Safety knowledge qualification.

In addition to this apprentices will acquire key transferable skills such as problem solving,

communication skills, decision making, customer care and team building.
There will also be a residential in the Lake District.

If apprentices do not possess Level 1 qualification in English and Maths they will be required
to undertake functional skills which will be delivered by the provider.

The qualification obtained at the end of the programme is Level 2 in Community Safety.

Page 59



Opportunities

COMMUNITY SAFETY ADVISOR
APPRENTICESHIP [LEVEL 2]

PROTECTION FRAMEWORK
[LEVEL 3]

TO BE DEVELOPED IN
PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN SKILLS]
FOR JUSTICE AND CFOA. MFRS

TO BE INVOLVED IN THE
DEVELOPMENT.

FIREFIGHTER FRAMEWORK EMPLOYMENT AS AN
ADVOCATE SHOULD VACENCIES
[LEVEL 3] EXIST

/

THIS HAS BEEN DEVELOPED AND
HAS ATTRACTED FUNDING TO
SUPPORT YOUNG PEOPLE
BETWEEN 18-24 UNDERTAKING
THE RECRUIT TRAINING COURSE

LEAVING THE ORGANISAITON

Page 60



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SAFETY ADVISER
APPRENTICESHIP

[LEVEL 2]

PROTECTION
FRAMEWORK
[LEVEL 3]

go BE DEVELOPED IN
(PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN
GKILLS FOR JUSTICE AND
CFOA.
MFRS TO BE INVOLVED
IN THE DEVELOPMENT.

FIREFIGHTER
FRAMEWORK
[LEVEL 3]

THIS HAS BEEN
DEVELOPED AND HAS
ATTRACTED FUNDING TO
SUPPORT YOUNG

PEOPLE BETWEEN 18 - 24
UNDERTAKING THE
RECRUIT TRAINING
COURSE.

EMPLOYMENT AS AN

ADVOCATE SHOULD LEAVING THE

ORGANISATION

VACANCIES EXIST




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda Item 7

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/115/14
NO:

PRESENTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE, KIERAN TIMMINS

OFFICER

RESPONSIBLE KIERAN TIMMINS, REPORT KIERAN

OFFICER: NYREE COLLINSON AUTHOR: TIMMINS

OFFICERS

CONSULTED:

TITLE OF REPORT: | MERSEYSIDE POLICE ESTATE STRATEGY

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A: POLICE ESTATES STRATEGY
APPENDIX B: PROPOSED RESPONSE
APPENDIX C MFRS AND MERSEYSIDE POLICE

PROPERTY LOCATIONS

Purpose of Report

1.  To inform Members of the publication of the Police Estates Strategy (which can be
found at Appendix A to this report)

Recommendation

2. That Members note the attached Estates Strategy report from the Police & Crime
Commissioner’s Office and the proposed response in Appendix B to this report.

Introduction and Background

3. The Merseyside Police and Crime Commissioner has issued a public
consultation on Merseyside Police Force’s Estates Strategy (at Appendix A).

4. A proposed response to this consultation is attached as Appendix B.

Equality and Diversity Implications

5.  Modern buildings provide effective access for all.

Staff Implications

6. There are no staff implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications

7.  There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 63



Page 64



Financial Implications & Value for Money

8.  Sharing resources effectively can save money.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

9.  There are no Risk Management, Health & Safety or Environmental Implications
arising from this report.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

10. Working with Blue Light partners helps keep Merseyside safer.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



| gy fontngorime {Pouce comnmssuomen

et protecting communities
N , Working

We’re committed to
prowdlng acceSSIbIe
pol icin ng for.e '

Just one of the TAKING |
steps we’re taking THERIGHT [l] I |
sTepscoM I

Page 67




Foréwdrd

&h

I believe that a successful, high performing police service
never stands still. If we want to keep Merseyside one of the
safest places in the UK to live in or visit, we need to ensure
that we make the right long term decisions.”

Every police force in the country has had to
adapt to recent budgetary challenges, but it’s
the way we adapt to them that will make all
the difference.

Despite the austerity measures, the Chief
Constable and I are committed to providing
accessible policing right at the heart of every
community. l'want to take this opportunity to
move things forward; to focus our resources
on maintaining a real and dynamic police
presence right on yourdoorstep.

That's why we're starting a'consultation
process which will give every residentin
Merseyside the opportunity to get invalved.

First of all, we need to acknowledge that times
have changed and the way that people use the
police service has changed.

With this in mind, we have recently developed
an Estate Strategy — a review of police
buildings, their use and location.

We’ve developed this strategy because over
the past few decades new neighbourhoods
have emerged as many residents have
relocated, which means that'some of our
palice stations are no longer in the heart of our
communities, where they are needed most.

At the same time, the number of people
who actually visit police stations is reducing
because many people now prefer to contact
the palice by phone or online.

Another impact of recent cuts has been
that up to 60% of the space in some police
stations is now empty or under-utilised.

We believe we can save money by improving
the way we operate; replacing poorly located
and inefficient buildings with a more efficient
service fit for 21 Century policing.

We can create more accessible policing by
co-locating with partners to maximise our
neighbourhood presence and targeting
resources to meet the ever-changing needs
of our communities.

In short, we need to take the right steps now.

And we want you right here alongside us,
playing an active role in our future.

Jane Kennedy
Merseyside Police and Crime Commissioner




Our Estate Strategy explained

The recent and ongoing austerity measures have
significantly affected every police force across the UK.
Merseyside Police is no exception.

The cutbacks have presented us with many - :
challenges; but they have also presented us with What is the police estate?
opportunities which will enable us to cormmence

afundamental, far-reaching and long-lasting

transformation of our police estate — the 78 police buildings ol
buildings we occupy and conduct our police the whole of Merseyside
service from right across Merseyside.

As this Estate Strategy will clearly show, we are % of buildings were built
committed to providing accessible policing for between 1900 and 1970
every community.

We aim to improve efficiency by reducing % of space is taken up with
maintenance and lease costs and co-locating 24 toilets, corridors, plant rooms

police teams in our communities. and circulation areas

Corlocating will mean sharing some buildings

with partner or community services, which will % of total floor area is
rnake our service more cost effective —enabling usable office space

us to keep bobbies on the beat.

The changes we're planning are important to
protect frontline policing, but your opinions and
those of every single member of our communities These are the right steps for the

are important too. people of Merseyside.

That's why we would like as many people as ;
possible to play an active role in this coﬁsu!tution, And the rlqht stepjs for the future
so everyone will be aware of the reasons behind of your police service.

those decisions and see just how every community

will benefit in the long term.

By supporting the Police and Crime Plan, we will
be able to enhance the operational effectiveness
of the police estate, improve our environmental
impact and work more closely with the
communities of Merseyside.

Page 69



167%

of total staff lost due to
austerity since 2011

607%

of space in some police stations
is empty or under-utilised

£2.5m

savings we will make each
year. This equates to at least
65 officers on the beat




The Key Issues

The impact of the spending cuts

Since the spending cuts began, we have lost 1,100
police officers, police community support officers
and staff, a reduction of 16%. By 2017, confirmed
austerity will have led to police officer numbers
alone being reduced by 22% . This has led to some
buildings becoming empty or under-utilised.

Issue of wasted space

Due to the age of the estate, the layout and
building designs are often inefficient by modern
standards; over 26,000m? or 24% is taken up with
corridors, mechanical plant rooms and circulation
areas. In a modern estate, that would be nearer
10%. The reduction in officer and staff numbers
means that some buildings are under-utilised by
as much as 60%. There is potential to reduce
overall space by reallocating resources without
impacting on operational areas.

The problems of an ageing estate

The current police estate is unsustainable; there
are some 78 buildings covering a combined floor
area of circa 110,000m?. It costs approximately
£12million to run and maintain these buildings

every year.

The average age of our buildings is 52 years
and in fact, some of the buildings we occupy
date as far back as 1890 which means that the
estate requires constant funding to ensure that
it remains operational.

Adapting to geographical factors

The past few decades have seen a significant
geographical shift in housing and population.

Urban regeneration and suburban
development has meant that some police
stations are no longer right at the heart of
communities. This is because the communities
themselves have moved to new, thriving estates.

Responding to the changing ways
people use our service

The way that residents are using the police
service continues to evolve, with many people
preferring to contact us, report suspicious
activity or access our services by phone or online
rather than calling into the stations themselves.

In 1974, when Merseyside Police was formed,
we received 192,752 calls. Last year, our call
handlers took more than 830,100 calls.

The need for future sustainability

In some locations, existing heat and ventilation
systerns are woefully lacking in fulfilling

our energy efficiency and environmental
obligations. There is a pressing need to reduce
both energy consumption and our carbon
footprint.

A focus on future sustainability is required to
reduce costs, increase efficiency and ensure
legal compliance.



The Estate Strategy

The Proposed Solution

The overall objective is to deliver on our promise to provide accessible
policing for every community. The steps we’re taking will ensure our
estate is not only fit for purpose today, but fit for the future too.

The Estate Strategy aims to deliver new and refurbished accommodation which will facilitate modern ways
of working, effective partnerships, efficiency improvements and increased flexibility and mobility. It includes:

« The requirement to adapt the estate to meet = The consideration of commercial opportunities
the challenges of austerity measures to maximise potential value in the estate whilst

, providing fit for purpose, affordable alternatives
= The need to identify inefficient space and

develop open plan flexible working to maximise « The need to explore opportunities for
space usage collaboration with partners, other agencies
_ and develapers through re-generation and
= The co-location of services to facilitate improved development initiatives

operational effectiveness and efficiency
« The use of more energy efficient building design,

« The development of appropriate via thermal insulation, protection from solar gain,
accomrnodutlon for each area and corporate green energy initiatives and zoning of heating
functions and lighting installations

« Resolving maintenance issues within the
existing estate and those required in the
immediate future

Core Principles:
Affordability:

All solutions will be fully costed with Community Police Stations will be at the
tangible benefits — delivering a significant heart of communities and each community
reduction in running, maintenance and served by a station will have access to

lease costs across the estate officers on the beat

Co-location: Focus on the future:

Functions and departments will be Improve efficiency with an estate that is
co-located where possible in refurbished ready to meet future challenges
or new, efficient accommodation

Sustainability:

Maintenance first: :
Local social and economic value principles

All larger maintenance issues relating to willbe applied and all buildings will be fully

essential buildings will be addressed assessed against key sustainability criteria to
ensure enviranmental and legal compliance,

Resource management: whilst delivering real cost efficiencies

The full potential of existing buildings will Feasibility:
be fully realised

Al property solutions will' support
A0 2




The Estate Strategy in detail

To provide the flexible, accessible policing our neighbourhoods need,
this strategy will create more efficient buildings, generate opportunities
to co-locate with partners and extend collaborative working.

The Estate Strategy will result in:

« The refurbishment and utilisation of existing
buildings where possible, maximising the current
estate, or providing new buildings with more
efficient office and storage space at the heart
of our communities

Identifying and developing commercial
opportunities that will create capital for further
investment in the estate

A major refurbishment of at least one large
station in each areq, creating a headquarters
to accommodate office-based functions and
aneighbourhood team in a location that is
fit for purpose

Accommodating neighbourhood and patrol
staff, either by co-locating or disposing of existing
buildings to provide new, better located facilities

The Police Commissioner’s
focus on accessible
policing will create a real
and visible police presence

right across Merseyside

= Developing Community Police Stations to
support neighbourhood policing in locations
where older stations are in the wrong areas or
are no longer suitable. These will give police
officers and police community support officers
areal base in each community where they can
meet the public and operate more effectively

Building a new Operational Command Centre
for the Matrix Serious and Organised Crime
portfolio (releasing leased accommodation)
and implementing essential refurbishments to
Merseyside Police Headquarters

Delivering real savings via the release of a
number of leased properties, presently costing in
excess of £1million each year and reducing the
overall number of buildings in the portfolio




Proposed Merseyside Estate

The maps on this page
show the proposed changes
to the Merseyside Police
Estate and the planned
locations of each area’s
new Neighbourhood and
Patrol Hub and Community
Police Stations

Custody provision is under
review across the Force

®

Merseyside Estate key:

A Merseyside Police Headquarters
Area HQ

Police and Crime Commissioner
Custody Suite

Police Station

Community Police Station

Neighbourhood and
Patrol Hub

New Neighbourhood
and Patrol Hub

‘General Enquiry Office
Corporate Estate

New Operational Command
Centre

Multi-purpose Police Location

Co-located Community
Police Station

» Merseyside Police is divided into five
areas, varying in size but sharing key
objectives, each overseen by a Chief
Superintendent

Each area corresponds with a local
authority and, under these proposals, will
comprise of an Area Headquarters and
at least one new Neighbourhood and
Patro! Hub, as well as new Community
Police Stations

Area HQ:

The strategy includes the major
refurbishment of one police station

in each area to become an Area
Headquarters, providing a central base
for the Command Teams, desk-based
functions, Neighbourhood teams and a
General Enguiry Office

Co-location and centralisation will
increase opportunities to exchange
information and share resource, reducing
travel time, making police time more
productive and releasing space leading
to greater cost efficiencies

€ Neighbourhood and Patrol Hubs:

» Neighbourhood and Patrol Officers will
benefit from a more open-plan style
building with a small number of support
spaces for agile working

Wirral
Sefton
Liverpool
Knowsley
St Helens

« Existing buildings will be adapted or
their commercial value will be capitalised
on by replacing them with more fit for
purpose facilities

Community Police Stations:

o This strategy includes the expansion of
the Community Police Station network,
following in the footsteps of those
successfully established in St Helens

» These will be smallerin size but enable
Neighbourhood Officers and PCS0s to
work in the heart of the communities

» Will involve co-locating with partners
and other agencies to benefit from cost
efficiencies

4 Corporate Estate:

» This serves the whole Force and includes
Matrix Serious and Organised Crime,
Corporate Criminal Justice, Resource
Directorate and Strategy Development

= Accommodation was previausly leased
to house some of these semvices; a
temporary ‘shortfall’ solution while this
Estate Strategy was developed

» The proposed solution will redirect
this lease money to create a new
Operational Command Centre, refurbish
Merseyside Police Headquarters and
Smithdown Lane Office, extend the
garage facility, as well as refurbishing
the mounted and dog sections




Liverpool:

®essasnsnsrennssrsrnnnnaanrran L T T PP TP PP T e sesssnbansnn

Stanley Road 13. St JohnsAccess Point
St Anne Street 14, Granby Strest
Merseyside Police Headquarters 15. Admiral Street
Copperas Hill 16. BelleVadle

Walton Lane 17. Allerton
Lowerlane 18. Garston
EatonRoad 19. Speke

Tuebrook 20. Mather Avenue
Famworth 21. Mariners Wharf
Smithdown Lane 22, Century Buildings
Wavertree Road 23. Liverpool Airport
Binns Read

VWoOoNOUNEWN S

The merger of Liverpool North and South has
delayed the progress of the Estate Strategy in
this area. The Strategy for Liverpool will follow
the same core principles as the rest of Merseyside.
Merseyside Palice Headquarters will remain in its
current location and a new Operational Command
Centre will be developed in Speke. These proposals
will be released as soon as they are completed.

Knowsley:

3 ik

/| Stockbridge Village

Wirral:

,
/] Moss Bank |

Birkenhead
[Uptonf 3 .
Well Lane
Newton-Le-Willows

Eccleston -y
[ = /| Helena East

Thatto Heath | /]

Brobomugh
4




Playing your part in the
consultation process

Over the course of the coming months, we will be touring
Merseyside, talking to as many residents as we can about
as many of the issues as we can, conducting community
meetings which will outline what’s happening in each area
and in the wider community.

Visit our website

The times and dates for each of those L ‘ ’
P— takingtherightsteps.com and

meetings will be released on the website — S

takingtherightsteps.com

Inside your stakeholder pack, you will also
find an area-specific map illustrating the
current estate and the proposed changes
for each area in more detail.

There are four ways in which you can
get involved:

simply complete the feedback form

Attend one of our Community
Briefing Sessions

Complete a feedback form available
at our public meetings or from

the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at Allerton Police
Station, Rose Lane, Allerton, L18 6JE.







Making it easy
for you to have
your say

Just one of the steps we’re taking

The needs of communities across
Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never We believe these are the right
change is our absolute steps to take and this is the
commitment to keeping right time to take them.
police officers where they
belong; right at the heart of
the communities we serve.

But first, we'd like to hear
the views of key stakeholders
across Merseyside.

That’s why the central focus
of this Estate Strategy is

our 100 % commitment to
providing accessible policing
for every neighbourhood.

We look forward to speaking
to you at one of our meetings.

iﬁghﬁng cime  LPOLICE COMMISSIONER TARING
protecting communities e THE RIGHT

STEPS.COM

Page 78




siadojanap pub sapuabo

Ja10 ‘siaupnd yum

saiunuoddo uonoiogp|(d
aiojdxa o1 paauay) -

SaNSss! SDUDUSIUIDLI
NNy PUD JUBLND JO
uonouswa|dwi ay) -

210152 3y} Ul anjoa jpnualed
S|WIXow 03 sapiunuodde
[PI2IBUILI0D 4o unsind 3y

ubisap Buiping JUEIETIEY
ABraua aiow joasnay| -

UCHDPOLWILLIGIID
aaijod 3)goIINS 210w
Jowswdopnapay) -

Aouainiye 1507 anosdiw) oy
S3DINIGS JO LONDIOFOD BY)

2Bosn asods asiuxouw
puD a30ds Juapyaul
AJuapi 03 paauayy «

S2UNSDBLL

Awzisno Jo sabuapouyy

A1 133LL 0] 310153 3y}
100pD 01 WawaAnba) 3y -

003 a1n3ny
23 1oy
Appai pup
puodsal
0} Appai
S1 921AIDS

SSIN N Byl s
ajjod £19n3 paj

sanyy S50 K1112)571D JU3
2

iz

adijod 1nok

AAJIS M SAJUNLULLIOD
3441 4O HDAY 3y} It

8 [V buojaq Aay;y
A13yMm 51321440 adijod
daay upd am os
'sBuipjing joiuassa-uou
13A0 A13s 3d1j0d
[enu uoud oy
3L 5,3 Aym s Joy |

‘paidnaoo ssbuo| ou soods
40 %09 o1dn LM ‘pasyin
Japun 10 Aydws a1p sbuipjing
SLUDS 08 "3215 U1 33nPal 0
PDY S1Y 52104 33 JUDSW
OS[D BADY SYIOGIND Juaday

BUIUO SN DDJUOD

10 192 03 J2yaud mou 3ydoad
Aupw asnoaag paddosp aany
S)ISIA LIOIDIS ‘LN 3LU0S 3Y) Iy

JS0W papaau a1 falpy

aiaym pajpa0| SAum{D Jou
81,4511 05 'Uaag SKomip an faup
319um paAD]S 2ADY SUORDYS
a3j0d Ing 'se1pyse Buinuy
'MaU 0JUC PUD SCUNGNS ay) o3u|
'SUMO] 3L JO N0 ‘pajndoRI

10 PIAOLL BADY SAIUUNWLIWIOY

bunnsug

Isow ayy
papaau
a1 Aayy

aIaym

s9on|d 03

$92.N0sa

221j0d

bunaing

SUIS 'S3PDDBP JUSDRI JBA0)

: m"";ﬁm N § POLICECOMMISSIONER

The needs of communities across
Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never We believe these are the right
change is our absolute steps to take and thisis the
commitment to keeping police  right time to take them.
officers where they bélong;
right at the heart of the
communities we serve,

Butfirst, we'd like to hear
the views of key stakeholders
across Merseyside.

That's why the central focus
of this Estate Strategy is

our 100 % commitment to
providing accessible policing
for every neighbourhood.

We look forward to speaking
to you at one of our meetings.

The next step

There are four ways in which you can get involved:

Visit our website takingtherightsteps.com
and simply complete the feedback form

Attend oneof our Community Briefing Sessions

Complete a feedback form available at our public
meetings or from the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at Allerton Police Station, Rose Lane,
Allerton, L18 6JE

Merseyside Police

Our Estate Strategy
Liverpool Map

Call0151 777 5155 to order a form

Working For Merseyside STEPS.COM

TAKING
*m POLICE COMMISSIONER Rt .J:age 7@t one of the

steps we're taking




Liverpool Before;

[

current location and a new Operational Command

‘will be released as soon as they are completed.

The merger of Liverpool North and South has
delayed the progress of the Estate Strategy in
this area. The Strategy for Liverpoo! will follow
the same core principles as the rest of Merseyside.
Merseyside Police Headquarters will remain in its

Centre will be developed in Speke. These proposals Merseyside:

After the proposals

Core Principles:

Resource management:

Accessibility:

Co-location:

and depariments will

Merseyside:

addressed

A Merseyside Police Headquarters 4 Cotporote Estate

| | Custody Suite Multi-purpose Policé Tocation

O Police Station ¥4 Cotocated Community Police Station
Q Police and Crime Commissioner

Feasibility:

Commun

Custody provision is under
review across the Force

Liverpool Map Key:

13. St Johns Access Point
14. Granby Street
15. Admiral Street
16, Bele Vale

17. Allerton

18. Garston

19. Speke

20. Mather Averiue
21, Mariners Wharf
22, Century Buildings
23, Liverpool Airport

. Stanley Road

. StAnne Street
Merseyside Police Headquarters
Copperas Hill
Walton Lane

. Lowerlane

. Eaton Road

. Tuebrook

. Famworth

10. Smithdown Lane
1. Wavertree Road
12. BinnsRoad

DN LS WN -

The proposed future estate for
Liverpool is still under review

A ' G £
Custody Sulte. % General Enquiry Office

O Police Station [0 Muttspurpose Potice focation

9 Police ana Comm % c Police Storion

3 New Operntionnl Command Centre




siadojpasp puo seipuabo
B0 ‘siupnd yiim
saniunyoddo uonpiogo)jod
2)0/dxa 01 paau sy

S5aNSS| S2UDUSILIDWLL
213Ny pUD JUBLNT JO
uonpiuawaidiul ay ).

310153 34 Ui aNoA orusjod
SN 0) sanunpodde
[RIBLWILWCD Jo yinsind 3y )

ubBisap Buppng Jusiye
AB1aua 210w Joasn auy |

UOIDPOLILLIOIID
3o10d 3)GOUNS 3i0WW
jojuswdonap ay |

A2usid1Y43 1503 anoidw) 0
S3IIUBS JO LIOND20[-00 Y|

2bosn ac0ds asiwixow
pup acods Juanyaul
Anuapr oy pasu ay)

SaINSDAW
Auano Jo sabusyoy
34) 3192 0] 3)03s3 By}
1dopo oy wawainbaiay) -

00} aInjny
9y} 10}
Apoai pup
puodsal
03 Appai
SI 9J1AI9S

amsmwmwa ul sﬁwplmq
4 a:uo;lppdaag 0 pm;;n 1,uDy

mam Buiipfians Bujop & al aM

3 ‘apiskasIaYy S50138
1By Adnooo Sm sBLIpNG U1
- almsaezzpdmuu@sunn
o, Aunyoddo sty i sn
pajusaid osip BADY A3 yng
* sabius|oup Aupw yim sn

"D3ID SUIIH 1531
©p 01 puajul Moy 1
Mmoys uwapmsﬂnw Byt

‘pasu SPOOUmBQl}ﬁIaﬂ ino jouyy
Bupijod angsum Buipioid
44 109 a1y Lo S31qg0q dasy  sabuayoy

PUD A3UOL BADS 01 5} WD InQ pRjuasasd anny syIpqIna 3y
‘Pan0ALI 12607 “Uopyd20%3 ou s a3jod

- Ayunpoddo ayy nok anBiim - apiskasiapy amssoma:m;
DIy ss3301d UoNBYNSUEd a2jod Aiana paiaayo oDy

D burpms ar amﬁwsm saInsoaL Kwa}snnwa:alaqk

adijod inoA
buninsug

pNjaul 3] "00] 2
1} Inq ‘Appey asodind sl jou s 33jauss
am;od 1nof oy Bupnsua noqo in 2D sjpsodoud ung

K;lunwuxoa JIETE 10}
ﬁupuod 3]q1ss223D buipiroid
(03} pamt.ul.uo:) al am’

“paidnano s36uo) ou adnds
40 %09 03 &n yum ‘pasyAn
Japun Jo Adwa auo sBuipjing
SLLIOS 05 3215 Ul 20nPaJ 01
POY SDUY 30104 33 JUbaLL
03JD 3ADY SYIDGING JUI3Y

jsow 3y
papaau
al Aoy
alaym
s20p|d 03
S@2In0osal
asijod

budang

"3U|UO SN PUOd

10|02 03 Jajaud mou ajdoad

Auow asnoaaq paddosp anoy

'BALBS BM STIHLNLILWIOD SUSIA LIONDIS ‘BULY ALLDS 3] 1y
243 40 Hoay ay] o
146U - Buojaq Asy)
3Jaym 5132140 a31jod
dasy uDd am o5
‘sBuipjing |pruassa-uou
12A0 S82IAIBS B31j0d
jonuassa asnuoud 03
By 5,31 Aym s 304 |

1S0W papasu aJ Aayy

313U p31020j sApmiD Jou

a1, Aau 05 ‘Usag shomip aa faLp
213y PADIS SADY SUONDIS
3oljod Ing sabisa buiuyy
‘MBU 0JUO PUD SQINGNS 343 OJU
'SLMO] al] JO Ino ‘p3yod0jR1

10 P3AOL SADY SBRIUNLILLIOD
ALLIOS '$3PDDAP JUSDA) JAA()

POLICE COMMISSIONER

The needs of communities across
Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never We believe these are the right
change is our absolute steps to take and this s the
commitment to keeping police  right time to take them.
officers where they belong;
right at the heart of the
communities we serve,

But first, we'd like to hear
the views of key stakeholders
across Merseyside.

That's why the central focus
of this Estate Strategy is

our 100 % commitment to
providing accessible palicing
for every neighbourhood.

We look forward to speaking
to you at one of our meetings.

The next step

There are four ways in which you can get involved:

D Visit our website takingtherightsteps.com
and simply complete the feedback form

Complete a feedback form available at our public
meetings or from the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at Allerton Police Station, Rose Lane,
Allerton, L18 63E

Merseyside Police

Our Estate Strategy
St Helens Map

Call 0151 777 5155 to order a form

TAKING
THE RIGHT
STEPS.COM

fighting cnme

POLICE COMMISSIONER

Working For Mersaysice

o Do 1o Bt one of the
.-ﬁg steps we'’re taking




Our proposals

Sutton, Thatto Heath

= Option 1: Retuln and refurbnsh
to become Area Headquarters,
General Enquiry Office, main
Neighbourhood and Patrol Hub

+ Dption 2: Dispose and replace
with a new Area Headquarters,
General Enquiry Office, main
Neighbourhood and Patrol Hub

Newtnn-le-Willows

. Dlspose of current buﬂdng and
replace with Neighbourhood
and Patrol Hub

Rainford, Billinge, Moss Bank,
Miﬂersduie Tickle Ave, E:deston
. Remin as Community
Police Station or Co-located
Community Police Station

= Relocate Tickle Avenue to
Helena East

* Replace with a co-located
Community Police Station

antn:dSﬁeetundDumCuurt

. Surrendet the lease for the
Dane Court Cop Shop

* Surrender the lease for Central
Street offices

Atlns House

» Multi Agency Struteglc Hub
remains based with Partners

After the proposals

Core Principles:

Resource management:

The full potential of existing
buildings wil be fully realised

Afferdnblhty

All solutions ml.befu\ly osted
with tangible benefits - delivering
a significant reduction in running
maintenance and lease costs
across the estate
Accessibility:

Community Police Stations wiil
be at the heart of communities
and'each community served by

astation will have access to
officers on the beat

Focus on the future
lruplu\e € Fh iency with an estate
that Is ready to meet future
challenges

Co-location:

Functions and departments will
be coocated where possible

in refurbished or new, efficient
1commeodation

Maintenance first:

B M ance issues
relating to essentiol buildings will be
addressed

Feasbjilty

All property saluhons will Sunpcll
operational policing

Sustulnubrirty

Local social and economic va\ue

punum« will be op; ed and all
against km

{o ensure environmental and |
compliance, whilst delivering r CA

cost efficiencies

St. Helens Before:

Merseyside:

St. Helens After:

Eccleston

Merseyside:

Custody provision is under
review across the Force

B Custody Suite
= Police Station
Multi-purpose Palice Location

/" Co-located Community Police Station
¥ Corporate Estate

| Moss Bank

Newton-le-Willows

4 [
Ij /| Helena East

(5 Helens

Thatto Heath| /]

n_ Suton

|
LB | Millersdale

- AreaHQ
‘Custody Suite
New Newton-le-Willows
Neighbourhood and Patrol Hub
Community Police Station

4 Multi-purpose Police Location
¥4 Co-focated Community Police Station

' Corporate Estate

General Enquiry Office




ubisap Buiping Uiy
ABi13Ua 2J0W Jo asn 3y |

UORDPOLULLICIOD
anjjod ajgouns alouw

j0 uawdopAap 3y |
siadojaap puo sanuabip JoIIBICORAP Y]

13ujo ‘waupod yiim Aoua
sanunpodde uooiogo)od
21010x3 0] pasU ay)

1442 1500 2a0)dLWl 0]

S JO UONDDO}-0) 3U |

abosn a0ods asjwnxoLu

S3NS51 BIUDUAILIDW puD 330ds JWBPYRL
21NNy pUD JU3LNI JO Knuapi 0y paau sy,
uonmusws|du ay |

Salnst

)03 11 Ul Bnfon [prRusod A31215nD 40 ssbuajjoud
JSIUIXDL 0] saijiunpoddo 3U 133w 01 0353 Ay
[DDIBLULLOD JO ) 1dopo o1 usWwRINba) 3y

paidnao0 J3buo| ou adods

40 %09 01 dn yIm ‘pasyin
13pun Jo fdwa auo sbuiping
BLUOS 05 5715 Ul 20npas 0}
POy SDY 82104 3} JUDaL
03|b 2ADY SXIDGIND JUaIBY

BUIUO SN DDJLCD

10 jo3 01 J3yasd mou ajdoad
Aunw asnooag paddoip anoy
SYSIA LONDIS '9LLY] SLWIDS 3U] 1Y

150w papaau al Ay

249U pajo30| skomib Jou

31, A31 05 'udaq SADMD an ABy)
313yMm PaADIs SADY SUONDIS
aoijod Ing ‘saq1sa Buiapyy
‘MaU CjUO pUD SEUNGNS L3 Ojul
‘SUMOY 3U] JO 1IN0 ‘PIjD20R)

1O P3AOLU MDY SaIUNLLILLIOD
SLIOS 'S3P0IAP JUBDAI JAN)

The needs of communities across
Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never We believe these are the right

change is our absolute steps to take and this is the
commitment to keeping police  right time to take them.
officers where they belong; i
communities we serve, T o

That's why the central focus y
of this Estate Strategy is We look forward to speaking

A T00% corrrmitrentte to you at one of our meetings.

providing accessible policing
for every neighbourhood.

The next step
There are four ways in which you can get involved:

D Visit our website takingtherightsteps.com
-2-"  and simply complete the feedback form

@ Attend one of our Community Briefing Sessions
@ Complete a feedback form available at our public
meetings or from the Office of the Police and Crime

Commissioner at Allerton Police Station, Rose Lane,
Allerton, L18 61E

3— i i {POLICE COMMISSIONER
B protecting communities : :

B fighting crime
¥, protecting communities

Merseyside Police

Our Estate Strategy
Sefton Map

Page 83



Sefton Before:

Our proposals

Marsh Lane

* Phosed refurbishment of station = Providea Community Police
10 become Area Headquarters Station replacement and
and accommodate Marsh Lane dispose of existing police
Neighbourhood and PatrolHub ~  station

* Relocate Vehicle Fleet
Management ta new facility at
Smithdown Lane

f‘ ?huu Maghull ® »

M= CopylLane

Southport/Formby/Ainsdale

» Develop new Neighbourhood
and Patrol Hub for Southport Crash
and Formby. Dispose of both __f,_ A0
existing police stations and « Provide a Community Police
cusstedy suite on completion Station !EP|GC€mEHt’;me

* Community Police Station with dispose of existing police
General Enquiry Office station
in Southport

« Community Police Station
for Formby and Ainsdale and
dispesal of Ainsdale upon
completion

Croshy e
@ Marsh Lane

Custody provision is under

Copy Lane review across the Force

* Retain and refresh Copy Lane
Police Station

Sefton After;

Ainsdale ®

After the proposals

Maghull ®

Core Principles:

Resource managemen Co-locatiol B Copy Lane

Functions and departments will
be cofocated where possible

in refurbished or new, efficient
occommodation

The full potential of existing
buildings wil be fully redlised

Affordability:

All solutions will be fully costed

with tangible benefits - delvering
asignificant reduction in running,
maintenance and

across the estate

Accessibility:

Community Police Stations will
be at the heart of communities
and each community served by

a station will have nccess to
officers on the beat

Focus on the future:

Maintenance firs

All larger maintenance issues
refating to essential building
oddressed

Feasibili

All property solutions will suj
operational policing

Local social and economic value

principles
buildings will be fully assessed
against key sustainability criteria
mental and legai
elivering real
cost efficencies

Merseyside:

A  Marsh Lane

.'.
2

*

Area HQ
Custody Suite

Neighbourhood and I’ﬁt:_rol Hub

New Southpart Neighbouth
and PatrolHub.
Community Police Station
General Enquiry Office

[0 Muiti-purpose Polica Lacation




siadojaaap puv sapuabo
Jayjo ‘sisupod Yum
sauNuodde uonoIogD|od
2lodxs 01pasuay) -
S3NSS| SIUDUSIUIDLL
UMy pun uaLn2 Bunosay «

210153 3] Ut anjoa jonuatod
asiWDW 01 saunyoddo
|ORLWIWOY Jo unsind sy ) «

ubisap buipjing s
ABraus asow yoasnay) -

UCII0POLLILIOIID
a21j0d ajgoyns alow
40 Wawdoppasp 3y

uanyys 1502 aroidw 0}
S3DIIBS JO UONDDO|-0D By =

abiosn adods asiuxow
puD a0ds Juanyjaul
Anuaploypaauay) «

S3INSDBLL
Apz1sno jo sabusyoyn
341 188W 0] B10JS3 ay)
3dopo o1 Juswainbaiay) -

'S3pNuL 3] ‘003 a1niny

3Y3 404 14 Inq ‘Abpoy asodind soy 31y 3s5nf J0U St 231435
a1jed 1nok oY1 buinsus Inogo jjo 310 spsodoud mnp

SAIDS BM S3JIUNWILLIOD
ay) jo Loay ay) 3o
1461 - Buojsqg Ay

313Ym 51321440 ad1jod
daay uod am os
'sbuipjing [pruassa-uou
Jano sadinas asijod
|E13uassa asijuoud o)
auwny s, 31 Aym s, 3oy |

The needs of communities across

“paidnano 1abugy cu sobds
40 %09 03dn yum ‘pasin
J3pun 1o Aldwa 210 sBuippng
BUWIOS 08 3215 Ul 33npas 03
PPy SDy 32104 3] JUDaW
0S{D SADY SOOI U3y

‘AUIUO SN PDJUOD
40 (|02 03 s243:d mou 3ydoad

Auplu asnodag paddoip asoy
SHsIA UDIDIS ‘DLUIT BLWDS 3yl 1y

50w papaau 3 A3y
2I3Um pajono] sAomp jou

31,433 05 'U33q SADMD aA A3l

3124 PAADIS SADY SUORDIS
adjjod g 'sa10353 BuinlL)

"MaU 00 PUD SQINGNS SL3 O1U1

'SUMOY 3] JO IN0 ‘PAYDIOR)
JO PAAOLL BADY SYIUNLILLGD
BULIOS 'SAPDIIP JUBDAL IBAQ)

Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never
change is our absolute

commitment to keeping police

officers where they belong;
right at the heart of the
communities we serve.

That's why the central focus
of thisEstate Strategy is

our 100 % commitment to
providing accessible palicing
for every neighbourhood.

The next step

We believe these are the right

steps to take and this is the
right time to take them.

But first, we'd like to hear
the views of key stakeholders
across Merseyside.

We look forward to speaking

to you at one of our meetings.

There are four ways in which you can get involved:

Visitour website takingtherightsteps.com
andsimply complete the feedback form

Attend one of our Community Briefing Sessions

Complete a feedback form available at our public
meetings or from the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at Allerton Police Station, Rose Lane,

Allerton, L18 6JE

Call 0151 777 5155 to order a form

fighting crme

POLICE COMMISSIONER

00] ain3ny
ay3 Joj
Apoai pup
puodsai

03 Appai

S| 9JIAIDS
221jod 1noA
buninsug

Jsow ay)
papaau
a1 Aoy

alaym

s20p|d 03

$92JN0s3l

2d1j0d
bunpang

TAKING
THE RIGHT
STEPS.COM

-pag

"DIID [DLIM LR U1 S
0P 0} pu3ju) ammoy Apxa
MOUS |[1m BpiSu) sdoL ay |

‘paau spoolnoqybiau ino Joy3
bupjjod ajqissaa30 Bujpinoid
Ag Iveg 843 10 $31G0q daay

PUD ASUIOLL 3ADS 0) 51 WD INQ

‘panjoaul 19603

Auntioddo auy nok aaB jjm
LPIyMm ss2304d UojOYNELIOD
D Burpioys a1 smAym s o4 |

‘21075 JUaLNS Hatfy i sbuipjing
‘a3jj0d pjo dasy o] piojj0 3,und
BM ] 3904 Y3 Inq ‘U0 pudap
nioA Baiss 331jod 2i) 193)01d 0}
oy em buiyilions Buiop afam

‘apisABSIB SSODD.

4By Adnado am SBLIPING BUY}
—3J035a Ajjod N0 WiogsuUDs
o) Apumioddo at yyim sn
paiuasaid os)p aapy £ay3 Ing
isabuapop Auow yumsn
pajuasaid aspy sypogInd ay |

“uondadxa ou s a3ljod
apiskesiapy N 54 550,30 8310
a2ijod A5aAa pajIayn anny
$3INSDAW AY1121SND LR35 81|

Aiunwwod L1943 10y
buiijod 3)q1ssa23p Buipinosd
0] PA13ILLILLIOD 31 3p\

POLICE COMMISSIONER

Merseyside Police

Our Estate Strategy

Wirral Map

e 35t one of the

steps we're taking




Wirral Before:

O

Laird Street f@]

S Vioreton]
Birkenhead
o)

O Well Lane

Our proposals

Wallasey

Retain and refurbish to Retain and refurbish : ! Bromborough

become Area Headquarters Bebington to become

and accommodate Neighbeurhood and Patrol
Wallasey Neighbourhood Hub replacement for

and Patrol Hub Bromborough

. Dispose of Bromborough
Birkenhead and Upton {retain corporate facility)
= Develop new Neighbourhood Heswall, Hoylake, Moreton, MEI’SEySIdE o

and Patrol Hub and dispose Well Lane and Laird Street
of existing police stations on i .

completion * Replace eachwitha

Community Police Station Community Police Station i Custody provision is under
replacement in Upton and dispose of the existing - review across the Force

Community Police Station palice stations

replacement with General i b,
Enquiry Office in Birkenhead 4 t bosy Wirral Custody Suite
4 Police Station
Carporate Estate
Multi-purpese Police Location

————— e

Wirral After:

Laird Street
» -‘

[Upton €3

After the proposals

Core Principles:

R nagement: Co-location

The full potential of exist Functions and dep
buildings will be full

refurbished
Affordability: accommadation
All solutions waill b ly costed = first:
with tangible benefi v
asignificant reduc
maintenance and lease costs

cross the estate addressed MEI‘SEySidE:
Accessibility: Feasibility.
E‘Dﬂ'\rﬂumly Pﬂ g :r ; vill sy i A'eq HQ ( 4
e . ) ! ! Wirral Custody Suite 8
: | ) Neighbourhood ond Patrol Hub
. New Upton &Birkenhead e
Neighbourhood and Patrol Hub
Corporate Estate
Y | ¢ : i . Community Police Station:
il B ron : b eI ' ; . : % General Enquiry Office
challenge: ;m;nuum 5 i P ; i/ D Muﬂl-purpuse?nli:elocu‘lfdn




ubisap buippng Juapy)e
ABizua aiow joasnay) -

UOHDPOWIWOID
aoijod 3)goyNs 20w

siadojeap pup sapuabo Ipiteuidoprap a1 o

13410 ‘siauund Lym
sanunyoddo uonoiogoyad
aloidxa 0y peauay) -

Kouapiyya 1500 anosdun )
SIS JO LONDIO]-02 Y| -

sbosn adods asiwxow
pun 330ds JUADYEU|
Anuapioypaauay) -

S3INSDAW
Awasno Jo ssbuaybyd
3U1 192LU 07 330353 AL)
3dopo o) JuswaNnbas ay| -

SBNSS! FIUDUSIUIDW
BJI'W'JJ PuUD JU3UND jo
uonojuslug|dw ay) -

310153 U] Ul aNAa [pRu3od
3SILIXDW 03 saiunpoddo
[DiJBUIWOD Jounsind 3y -

"paidnoae 1abuo) ou snds

10 %09 01 dn uym ‘pasijin
Japun 1o Adwa aio sbuiping
3LUOS 05 '3ZIS U} BINPaI O]
PDY SDY 92104 3U3 JUDALW
05|D 3ADY $YIDGIND JUIIBY

“SUIUO SN DDIUCD

40 ||o2 01 Jayaid mou ajdoad
Aupw asnodaq paddosp aroy
SYSIA UOADS ‘3L ALUDs a3 1y

Is0W papaau a1, 4oy)

3l3ym Pa1020| SADMID Jou
31,4343 05 ‘U2ag shomip an AL
a1aym padns sany suonois
2yjod Ing 's3103s3 BuiauLy
‘M3 0JLI0 PUD SCUNANS 2U3 Cyu
'SUMO] 3UJ 4O 110 ‘PIICD0RI

10 PAAOW 2ADY SINUNLLLIOD
BLUOS 'SAPD3P JUSIAL JBAQ

awn s 31 Aym s Joy g

The needs of communities across
Merseyside are changing

But one thing that will never
change is our absolute
commitment to keeping police
officers where they belong;
right at the heart of the
communities we serve,

That's why the central focus
of this Estate Strategy is

our 100 % commitment to
providing accessible policing
for every neighbourhood.

We belieye these are the right
steps to take and this is the
right time to take them.

But first, we'd like to hear
the views of key stakeholders
agoss Merseyside

We look forward to speaking
to you at one of our meetings.

The next step

There are four ways in which you can get involved:

Visit our website takingtherightsteps.com
and simply complete the feedback form

Attend one of our Community Briefing Sessions

Complete a feedback form available at our public
meetings or from the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at Allerton Police Station, Rose Lane,
Allerton, L18 6JE

Call 0951 777 5155 to order a form

fighting come

protecing POLICE COMMISSIONER

Working For Marseysia

003 ainjny
3] JoJ
Appai pup
puodsal
03 Appai
SI 92IAIDS

a21jod inok

bunnsugz

1sow a3
papasu
a1, Asyy
21aym
seon|d 03
S924N0Ssal
a21jod
bunoauiq

TAKING
THE RIGHT Pﬁg €
sTerscoM [l I |

 paip Kapsmouy ai msﬂm

0p 0} pusju; 3m Moy APoe.

FAOUS fim SpISul SDU 3y |
“pasu spooiynoqyBiaL N0 jouy
Bupjjod Squssanan Bipinoid
Aq305q 313 Lo s3iqqoq daay
{PUD ASUOL BADS 0) S} WD INp

. panoay; 19601
Ayjunyioddo st nok sab jim

- Piym ssazosd uopognsuoa

0 6uRIDs 21 M Aym s J0u |

{93015 JUBLND Hatf ut sbuipjing
20]jod pjo daa o1 pioyo 3,.und
-~ 9M S Dj 3y} Inq 'Wo puadap
noka3inies 32110d sy Pajeid o
L3 om Buigiians Buiop 2l ap

! ‘apishasiaj 550D |
461 Adn>oo smsbulpng s
— 30358 831jod IR0 WbIStD.Y
0} Aunyioddo 3y yaim sn
PaiLPsa1d 05 24Dy Aaiy Ing
‘536U oY Audw ym sn
Pajuasaid aAny SpoqIM By |

: “uoydaoxs oust adljog
SpIsAasIapy ) 2y ss0ID 830
@ljod 1243 papaHD SAny
SUNSDAW AJ151SND U331 DU |

 Auunwwod Asas 104
bupijod sjqissa33p Buipirosd
01 PaNILLILIO 31, 3

POLICE COMMISSIONER

Merseyside Police

Our Estate Strategy

Knowsley Map

8ifst one of the

steps we'’re taking




= Refurbish former Magistrates
Court and Huyton Police
Station to provide Areq
Headquarters

Kirkby

= Develop new Neighbourhood
and Patrol Hub with a General
Enquiry Office

= Community Police Station
replacement including a
General Enquiry Office may be
required in Kirkby. depending
on location of new hub,
Dispose of existing police
station on completion

Prescot

» Community Police Station
replacement for Prescot

Halewood

« Community Police Station
replacement for Halewood,
with parade on facilities for
neighbourhood team

Stockbridge Village

= Retain co-located Community
Police Station

After the proposals

Core Principles:
Resource management:

¢ potential of e
buildings will be fully realised

Affordability:

All solutions will b

with tongible ben

a significant redu:
maintenance and

across the estate
Accessibility:

Community Pol I
be at the heart of Tunities
and each community served by

a station will have acrcess to
officers on the beat

Focus on the future:
Improv ciency with an estate

that is ready to meet future
challenges

Co-location

Functions and departments wil
be co-Jocated where possible
in refurbished or new, efficient
accommeodation

Maintenance first:

Allfarger r INCe issues
relating to essential buildings will be
addressed

Feasibility:

will suppon

Merseyside:

Custody provision is under
review across the Force

Police Station
/" Co-located Community Police Station

' Halewood




Clir D Hanratty,
Chair,
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority

Ms. Jane Kennedy’ Fire Service Headquarters

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Merseyside, Bridle Road
Allerton Police Station, Bootle
Rose Lane, Liverpool
Liverpool L304YD
L18 6JE

Telephone: 0151 296 4000
Email: davehanratty@merseyfire.gov.uk

Web Site: www.merseyfire.gov.uk

Your ref: Our ref: Chair/DH/NDC Date:

Dear Jane,

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER’S CONSULTATION ON THE POLICE ESTATES
STRATEGY

| write in relation to your consultation on your proposed Estates Strategy.

We both know there is a strong expectation around blue light partners working together, and
that there are strong operational benefits to blue light colocation.

Building on strong joint working at JCC, | believe we should develop a formal strategic
alliance to focus attention on police/fire colocations that can be achieved speedily. This
could be progressed as a matter of urgency as these should be quick wins for the local tax
payers.

I look forward to supporting you to deliver your strategy and for our services to jointly keep
Merseyside safer.

Yours sincerely,

D. HANRATTY
CHAIR

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



T6 abed

2
21

®a

@i

@57
@z

Pz L ) 351

®:= @2®° @4 @2
@10

Wi

>3
@

9=

MFRE P

(1) KIRKDALE COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(2 LIWERFOOL CITY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(3) KENSINGTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

() ALLERTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(5) SPEKE AND GARSTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION
(5) TOXTETH COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

7)) OLD SWiAN COMBMUNITY FIRE STATION

(3) BELLE WVALE COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(9 AINTREE COMMUMITY FIRE STATION

(10) CROXTETH COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(11) BOOTLE AND NETHERTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION
(12) CROSEY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(13) FORMEY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(19 SOUTHFORT COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(15) HUYTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(16 MHISTON COMBMUNITY FIRE STATION

(17 KIRKEY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(18) ST HELENS COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(190 NEWTOM LE WILLOWS COMBMUNITY FIRE STATION
(20) ECCLESTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(21) BIRKEHHEAD COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(22) BROMBOROUGH COMMURITY AMBULANCE AND FIRE STATION
(23) HESWALL COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(24 UPTON COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(Z5)WEST KIREY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(26 MALLASEY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(27) RIVER MERSEY COMMUNITY FIRE STATION

(28) TRAINING AHD DEVELOFMENT ACADEMY

19
o o

@@ o84

@51 @5z @5z

[ T LI
i@ 1s

§=7
16 a0
L 12 .

Ps

$za

s

@z

MERSEYSIDE POLICE FPROPERTY LOCATIONS

(1) Admiral Street Police Station
(2) Ainzdale Police Station

21 Allerton Police Station

) Altcar

(5) Bebington Police Station

(5) Belle Vale Police Station

(7)) Billinge Police Station

(8) Binns Road

(9) Bitkenhead Police Station

(10) Bromborough Police Station
{11y Central Street S5t. Helens

(12) Cantury Buildings

(13) Copperas Hill Police Station
(14 Copy Lane Police Station

(15) Crosby Police Station

(16) rane Court Cop Shop

(171 Eaton Road Paolice Station
(18) Eceleston Police Station

(190 Farmmarth Street Police Station
(20) Force Headquarters

(21) Formby Police Station

(22) Garston Police Station

(23) Granby Street Cop Shop

(29 Halewood Police Station

(25) Heawall Police Station

(26) Hoylake Police Station

(271 Huyton Police Station

(28) Kikby Police Station

(29) Laird Street Police Station
(20) Lea Green Public Order Training Centre
(21) Liverpool John Lennon Airport
(22) Lower Lane Police Station
(23 Maghull Police Station

2% M ariners Wharf

(25 Marsh Lane Police Station
(26) Mather Avenue

(271 Millarsdale

(28) Moreton Police Station

(29 Moss Bank

(40 Mewton Le Wifillons Police Station
(1) Dliver Lyme Road

(42) Prescot Police Station

(43) Rainford Police Sub-Station
@4 Smithdown Lane Folice Station
(45) Southport Police Station

(45) Speke Police Station

(@71 5t Johnz Police Access Point
(42 5t. Anne Street Police Station
(430 5t. Helens Police Station

(50) Stanley Road Police Station
(51) Stockbridge Village Police Access Point
(52) Sutton Police Sub-Station
(53) Thatto Heath Police Sub-Station
(549 Tickle Avenue

(55) Tuebrook Police Station

(56 Upton Police Station

BT allasey Police Station

S8 ialton Lane Police Station
S iavertree Road Police Station
(B0) Well Lane Police Station
E1)dirral Custody Suite

Authar: Micholas Cowley
Date: 6.3.2013
Produced using Maplnfo
Strategic Planning

Map Reference: KIMWyork Requestsh
Data and SystemsiKieran Timminsh
MFRS & Palice Locations\MFRS & Police Locations png

MFRS & Merseyside Police Property Locations

Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 100026956

W=@)=~E
/




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Agenda Iltem 8

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: | POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 REPORT CFO/107/14

NO:

PRESENTING KIERAN TIMMINS, DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

RESPONSIBLE KIERAN TIMMINS REPORT KIERAN

OFFICER: AUTHOR: TIMMINS

OFFICERS

CONSULTED:

TITLE OF REPORT: | TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB ANNUAL REPORT AND

ACCOUNTS

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A: ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
FOR PERIOD ENDED 315" MARCH
2014

Purpose of Report

1.  To bring to Members’ attention the Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ending 31 March, 2014 for the Firefit Hub (attached as Appendix A).

Recommendation

2. That Members

a. note the attached Annual Report and Accounts for the Firefit Hub and the
successes achieved by the company

b. endorse and support the strategy to transition Toxteth Firefit Hub to a
“Onside” funding model as set out within this report.

Introduction and Background

3. Members will recall that the Authority approved the creation of the Toxteth
Firefit Hub as a unique project, combining a Youth Zone and fire station. A
charitable company was set up to run the Youth Zone in line with the business
plan considered by the Authority.

4. The Annual Report and Accounts of the Firefit Hub, attached as Appendix A
shows the excellent progress made by the charity in its first year.

5.  The charity runs the Youth Zone and provides the local community fire station
with an opportunity to engage young people through a variety of activities at the
centre. So far, it has gone a long way to support young people and help them
to make positive life choices, engage them in activities that will benefit their
health and well-being and to release their true potential.

Page 93



This has been achieved through the provision of sports, music and arts facilities
in an affordable manner for all. Assistance in governance and finance has
been achieved through local partners in the form of the City Council, housing
associations and local neighbourhood groups.

Key Achievements in the Year

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

During the building phase 8 apprenticeships were created for local young
people with the centre’s building partners.

As the project moved to its full operational stage, a charity was developed to
run services for young people and the centre became fully operational on 25™
July, 2013. Initially, 22 staff were recruited to run the centre, of which two thirds
were from the L8 postcode, many of them young people. In addition, 9 young
people are employed at the Hub working as Youth Hosts.

The services of the Hub have proved extremely popular with young people, and
at the end of March the Hub had over 1,800 signed up members. Between the
period July 2013 and March 2014 the Firefit Hub had recorded 73,034 visits.
Most of the young people come from the area around the centre, but work is
underway to extend this across Liverpool and Merseyside as the Hub is
Liverpool’s youth zone.

The charity reports that it has contributed to a 40% reduction in youth crime
rates, compared with previous years. Anti-social behaviour arson related fires
in the period around Bonfire Night and Mischief Night has also reduced by 52%
with very successful specific events being held at the Hub.

It has been an eventful, challenging and fulfilling first year for the Hub with a
number of major successes.

The Hub has worked to provide education and support for young people.
Jointly with educational partners such as the City of Liverpool College and
Everton Free School, a total of 960 qualifications were obtained by young
people using the centre as their educational base.

One of the youth members was awarded the Merseyside Sports Partnership —
Young Participant of the Year, and Sara Lawton (the MD) was awarded the
accolade of Merseyside Woman of the Year.

In terms of revenue support, up front funding has been provided from Liverpool
City Council and the Authority has assisted identifying significant sponsorship
and external support from key commercial partners. Long term financial
sustainability is a challenge for the charity despite these successes.

The original business plan relied upon an increasing proportion of income
arising from facility hire. Whilst there has been some increase this is not as high
as in the original business plan and in particular usage declined slightly during
the periods of good summer weather.

Page 94



16.

17.

The board of the Hub is mindful of the need to identify a solution to address this
shortfall which would become acute early into the next financial year without
corrective action. They have therefore approached “Onside” with a view to
adopting an “Onside” approach. “Onside” is a charity which provides a
comprehensive consultancy service in the development of high quality facilities
and delivery of young people’s projects. Onside has its origins in the nationally
acclaimed Bolton Lads’ and Girls’ Club, and has now built another 5 successful
Youth Zones across the North West. Its funding model is based on a network of
wealthy benefactors being established alongside local authority involvement.
Members will recall that Onside are supporting Wirral Borough Council develop
a youth zone in Birkenhead (for which the Authority is providing the land).

Onside are shortly to present a full proposal to the company board.

Equality and Diversity Implications

18.

The Hub operates in one of the City’s most diverse communities. The
workforce and the members of the centre reflect that diversity.

Staff Implications

19.

The Hub has created 22 new jobs, many for local young people.

Legal Implications

20.

The Authority nominates 2 Board members to the charitable board. They are
currently Clir Jean Stapleton and the Deputy Chief Executive.

Financial Implications & Value for Money

21.

22.

23.

24.

Toxteth Firefit Hub ended its first year of operations (2013/14) with a surplus of
£40,162 and a gross asset position of £211,895, although £132,550 of this
relates to deferred income which will fund operations in 2014/15.

Funding received from Liverpool City Council will be reduced from £150k in
2013/14, to £100k in 2014/15 and reducing further to £50k in 2015/16.

The Hub successfully generated £401,220 from operations and grants between
July 2013 and March 2014.

The charity has been very successful in delivering funds to provide the first two
years of operation. However income generation from facilities has not risen as
fast as anticipated in the business plan. The key to success will be to continue
this successful income generation into sustainable routes for the third year
2015/16. The Trustees are aware that there is a requirement to secure
substantial new long term funding to secure the long term future of the Hub. A
number of bids are to be submitted to support the charitable objectives of the
organisation and the charity is considering strategic options for income
generation including working with a number of partners and in particular
“Onside”. Cash flow forecasts for the charity indicate that a sustainable plan is
required by the end of the second year of trading.

Page 95



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Members will note that such challenges are not unique by any means for youth
focused charities in the light of current austerity measures.

Most of the charity’s funds are to be spent in the short term, so there are
currently no funds for long term investment. The trustees are able to invest
reserves in accounts which will generate income for the charity if appropriate.

The Fire and Rescue Authority makes no direct cash contribution to costs at
present

The Fire and Rescue Authority does support the hub “in kind” by;

a. providing a member of the Prevention and Protection team on
secondment to the Hub as Managing Director and in return has access
to some of the services and facilities and the Hub runs special events
and occasions for the service.

b. incurring building costs in the first instance and apportioning them on
an agreed methodology. The Authority meets some shared estate
costs e.g. grass cutting and window cleaning

c. The Authority has helped identify some partnership external sponsors
to support the project

The Chair to the Firefit Hub has approached the Chair to the Fire and Rescue
Authority seeking support in making the transition from the original business
plan to an “Onside” based model and to help maximise the time for Onside to
deliver a full sustainable model. The Hub has suggested that the Authority
might consider meeting the property costs in full for the initial development
phase of the Hub

Members will recall that they have previously agreed a specific reserve for
granted funded youth programmes of £0.250m — this was set in place as an
available source for transitional funding where pre-existing funding streams
were being withdrawn because of austerity measures. In addition the Authority
has set in place arrangements where it meets the building costs of close
partner charities most notably the Fire Support Network which is based in HQ.
(The Authority provides cash support to the Fire Support Network for services
provided)

The property costs for the initial development phase of the Hub are an
estimated £60k for a full financial year. The cost of supporting this request can
be maintained within current estates budgets for this year because of success
in achieving additional income for our buildings (which will be a permanent
ongoing saving for future budgets). If there were any need to call on the specific
reserve it would be reported in full to the Authority for approval.

Page 96



32. In addition officers will continue to work with commercial partners to seek to
maximise their corporate social responsibility offer and to generate sponsorship
for the Hub.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

33. A Risk Management Plan was developed for the original Business Plan. The
Board has recently set up a sub-committee, which will review these risks on a
regular basis.

34. The Board will conduct an annual review and the Risk Register is updated at
least annually.

35. Where appropriate, systems and procedures have been established to mitigate
the risks the charity faces. This includes the development of a Strategic
Funding Plan to assist in meeting the significant external risks to funding.

36. Internal control risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for
authorisation of all transactions and projects, and procedures are in place to
ensure the health and safety of staff, volunteers, clients and visitors to the
centre.

37. Should the charity at any time cease to operate the building would revert to the
Fire and Rescue Authority. The Authority would have to find an alternative use
/partner for the building or it would have to meet the building costs.

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities — Safe Effective Firefighters

38. The Hub makes a significant contribution to safer communities in the Toxteth /
Liverpool area through the delivery of diversionary activities in line with
Authority strategies.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

NA

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

MFRA = Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB
ANNUAL REPORT AND
ACCOUNTS

period ended 31st March 2014

REGISTERED NUMBER: 08444912

CHARITY NUMBER: 1152903

Page 99



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
for the period ended

31st March 2014

REGISTERED NUMBER: 08444912

CHARITY NUMBER: 1152903

Page 100



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Annual Report and Accounts
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Contents Page
Company Information 1
Report of the Trustees 2
Independent Examiners’ Report 9
Statement of Financial Activities 10
Balance Sheet 11
Notes to the Accounts 12

Page 101



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Company Information
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Company number: 08444912

Charity number: 1152903

Trustees: D G Akeroyd
S Brougham
B A Fitzgerald
D Kelly
C D Martin
H ] Mooney
P Morton
T Newman
A Oates
K Timmins

Secretary: J Henshaw

Registered office: Merseyside Fire and Rescue Services
Bridle Road
Bootle
Liverpool
L30 4YD

Bankers: HSBC
99-101 Lord Street
Liverpool
L2 6PG

Independent Examiner: Mr P L Griffiths FCA
Mitchell Charlesworth LLP
Chartered Accountants
5 Temple Square
Temple Street
Liverpool
L2 5RH

Page 102

1|Page



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees
for the period ended 31st March 2014

The trustees (who are also the directors of the company for the purposes of the company law) present their annual
report together with the accounts of the charity for the period ended 31st March 2014.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and
comply with the charity’'s governing document, applicable law and the requirements of the Statement of

Recommended Practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2005)".

Governing document

The charity is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated on 14th March 2013 and registered as a charity on 17th
July 2013, and is governed by a Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Liverpool’s Super Youth Zone

What is the Firefit Hub?
We are Liverpool’s Super Youth Zone. A state of the art, world class facility for young people from across the City. A
centre for sports, music and culture designed by young people, for young people.

Our mission

To engage young people through a variety of activities delivered at the Firefit Hub. Support young people, helping
them to make positive life choices that will assist them in reaching their goals and aspirations. Encourage young
people to engage in activities that will benefit their health and well-being releasing their true potential. Help young
people to face challenges presented to them in everyday life, working with partner organisations to provide long-term
sustainable support, education and employment.

The philosophy
We believe young people have a right to a safer, stronger and healthier future. That's why we place young people at
the centre of all aspects of the Hub.

The promise
We offer services that will engage young people in sports, music and arts. Our promise is to provide a variety of
activities that young people can afford.

We can deliver on projects

Our world-class facilities combined with a dedicated team allows us to provide a service that we are proud of. We also
recognise the needs of young people change on a regular basis and as such we continually review our services to
adapt them to the needs of young people.

We strive for excellence whilst continually learning from the young people who attend our facilities.

Organisation

The Firefit Hub was built as a unique collaboration between Department of Educations, Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Authority, Liverpool City Council, and young people from the local community of Toxteth and wider Liverpool. It is a

£5.2 million development that provides a world class venue for young people. Facilities include a ‘chillout zone’, café,
2 storey gym, sports halls and 4 3G 5 aside football pitches.

2|Page

Page 103



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Organisation (continued)

The Firefit Hub is required to be financially self-sustainable and as such the Toxteth Firefit Hub Ltd charity was
established in March 2013. The charity’s financial year end and this first annual report and accounts is for the period
to 31 March 2014.

The Hub building officially opened in April 2013 but became fully operational under the charity’s control in July 2013.
Structure, governance and management

The Toxteth Firefit Hub Ltd is a company Limited by guarantee which was incorporated on 14th March 2013. It
became a Charity (No. 1152903) when it was registered with Charity Commission on 11th July 2013.

The company’s governance is set out in its Memorandum and Articles of Association dated 14th March 2013. The
management of the company’s affairs is vested in the Board of Trustees (Co-Directors) about whom the Memorandum
and Articles of Association state that there will be a minimum of 3 and a maximum of 14 including from time to time
up to 2 co-opted trustees.

The board
The Board of Toxteth Firefit Hub currently consists of the following individuals:

Peter Morton Chair, Director and Trustee Plus Dane Group
Sara Lawton Managing Director (Seconded from) Merseyside Fire
and Rescue Service
Kieran Timmins Treasurer, Director and Trustee Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Service
Janet Henshaw Company Secretary Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Service
Henry Mooney Community Representative, Director and Everton in the Community
Trustee
Barbara Fitzgerald Community Representative, Director and Rialto Neighbourhood Council
Trustee
Steve Brougham Director and Trustee Riverside Housing
Colleen Martin Director and Trustee Liverpool City Council
Donna Kelly Director and Trustee Liverpool Housing Trust
Tony Newman Director and Trustee Merseyside Fire and Rescue
Service
David Akeroyd Director and Trustee City of Liverpool College
Andrew Oates Director and Trustee Liverpool Mutual Homes
Peter Owens Observer Toxteth Fire Station

Make-up of the board
The first board was formed with the support of a coalition of organisations who had a stake in supporting the scheme
and the local community. These organisations have nomination rights to the board:-

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority
Liverpool City Council

Liverpool Housing Trust

Plus Dane Housing Group

Liverpool Mutual Homes

Riverside Housing

e  City of Liverpool College

3|Page

Page 104



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Structure, governance and management (continued)

When the project was originally conceived as just a refurbishment of the old Toxteth sports centre, a stakeholder
group of organisations was set in place. Representatives of that group have also been appointed to the board to keep
a close relationship with the local community:-

¢ Henry Mooney from Toxteth Tigers
e  Barbara Fitzgerald from Rialto Neighbourhood Council

Finally representatives of the young members of the Hub are also present on the board making sure that the company
delivers what young people want and need.

Trustee induction and training

The trustees were selected from a range of local partners, each of which were key stakeholders in the community in
which the Toxteth Firefit Hub is based. These include a range of community representatives, delegates nominated by
key stakeholders including locally based Registered Social Landlords, and representatives of key investors including
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority and Liverpool City Council.

The initial trustees were recruited and appointed ahead of the opening of the Hub and their induction has included a
detailed briefing on the ambitions and strategy for the Hub. All Trustees have been involved in the development of the
short and medium term strategy for the organisation.

As and when new trustees are recruited and appointed, a full induction programme will be designed and delivered to
ensure they are fully conversant with the aims, objectives and operation of the Hub

Charitable objectives
The objects of the charity are for the public benefit and are specifically restricted to the following:

1) To further or benefit the residents of Toxteth and the neighbourhood and other districts that the trustees shall
deem appropriate, without distinction of sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternity,
race, disability, marriage or civil partnership status or of political, religious or other beliefs by associating together
the said residents and the local authorities, voluntary and other organisations in a common effort to advance
education and to provide facilities in the interests of social welfare for recreation leisure time occupation with the
objective of improving the conditions of life for the residents;

2) The promotion of public health through the provision of facilities for healthy exercise and sport for the benefit of
the public;

3) Toactas aresource for young people up to the age of twenty five living primarily in the Toxteth area of Liverpool
and otherwise the northwest by providing or facilitating the provision of advice and assistance and organising

programmes of physical, educational and other activities as a means of:

a) advancing in life and helping young people by developing their skills, capacities and capabilities to enable
them to participate in society as independent, mature and responsible individuals;

b) advancing education;

c) relieving unemployment.

4|Page

Page 105



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Charitable objectives (continued)

Ensuring our work delivers our aims and charitable objectives

We review our Mission and Philosophy each year. This review looks at what we achieved and the outcomes of our
work in the previous 12 months. The review looks at the success of each key activity and the benefits they have
brought to those groups of people we are set up to help. The review also helps us ensure our aim, objectives and
activities remained focused on our stated purposes. We have considered the guidance contained in the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when reviewing our aim and objectives and in planning our future
activities. In particular, the trustees consider how planned activities will contribute to the Mission and Philosophy and
charitable objectives they have set.

Activities

a)

b)

For young people
The Firefit Hub delivers a huge range of activities for young people. These include:-
Sports
The Hub has up to 15 different sporting activities per night from lacrosse to yoga, from football to table tennis. It
also holds major events and competitions.
Arts and music
A range of activities and skill development opportunities are provided for young people including nail art, pop art,
movie nights.
Special events
The Hub holds a range of major events to support key partners. These include music festivals, boxing events and
special events around Halloween and Mischief Night to reduce anti social behaviour.
The Hub's first birthday party saw a thousand people attend the centre to celebrate.
The next section shows some of the work in pictures.

Trading activities

In order to assist sustainability the centre hires out facilities to local groups and sports teams (many of whom
contribute back to the sports offer through the youth zone).

It also rents accommodation to a variety of partners including during the first year Everton Free school, City of
Liverpool College and Fit UK.

5|Page

Page 106



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Achievements and performance

It has been an eventful, challenging and fulfilling first year for the Hub with a number of major successes.

During the building phase 8 apprenticeships were created for local young people with our building partners.

As the project moved to its full operational stage this charity was developed to run services for young people and the
centre became fully operational on the 24 July 2013. Initially 22 staff were recruited to run the centre of which two
thirds were from the L8 postcode, many of them young people. In addition 9 young people are employed at the Firefit
Hub working as Youth Hosts.

The services of the Hub have proved extremely popular with young people and at the end of March the Hub had
currently over 1800 signed up members. Between the period July 2013 and March 2014 the Firefit Hub had 73,034
visitors. Most of the young people come from near the youth zone but work is underway to break down barriers.

The Hub has worked to provide education and support for young people. Jointly with on-site educational partners
such as the City of Liverpool College and Everton Free School, a total of 960 qualifications were obtained by young
people using the Hub as their educational base.

One of our youth members was awarded the Merseyside Sports Partnership - Young Participant of the Year.

For the unique approach of the charity to services for young people the MD, Sara Lawton, was awarded the accolade
of woman of the year.

Youth crime in the local area has dropped by 40%.

Anti-social behaviour arson related fires in the period around Bonfire Night and Mischief Night have reduced by 52%.

6|Page

Page 107



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Training
Staff are trained on a regular basis, training has included:

Safeguarding

First Aid

Fire Warden

Manual Handling
Protocols and procedures
Conflict Management
Health & Safety

Diversity & Equality
Health & Hygiene

C card training (sexual health)
e Defibulator training

e  Sporting qualifications

e  World Host training

Sporting qualifications are also offered to members who attend the Hub to allow them to facilitate sporting sessions
with their friends/peers.

Financial review

During its first year of operations the Hub has been supported by a range of investments.

The capital cost of building the centre had been met through a strong consortium of Education Department (through
the myPlace programme), Liverpool City Council and Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority.

In terms of revenue support there has been significant up front funding which has involved a strong partnership
approach between the Liverpool City Council and the Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority. There has also been
some significant sponsorship and support from key commercial partners.

Toxteth Firefit Hub ended its first year of operations with a surplus of £40,162 and a gross asset position of £211,895,
although £132,550 of this relates to deferred income which will fund operations in 2014/15.

The trustees are aware that there is a requirement to secure substantial new funding to secure the long term future of
the Hub. They are arranging a number of bids to be submitted to support the charitable objectives of the organisation
and considering options for income generation.

Investment powers and policy

Most of the charity’s funds are to be spent in the short term so there are currently no funds for long term investment.
The trustees are able to invest reserves in accounts which will generate income for the charity if appropriate.

Principle funding sources

The Firefit Hub has received part funding from Liverpool City Council, the funding allocation is as follows:-

Year 1 £150k
Year 2 £100k
Year 3 £50k

The Firefit Hub received sponsorship and support from key commercial partners and benefits from shared services
with the fire station.

The Hub generated £401,220 from operations and grants between July 2013 and March 2014.

7|Page

Page 108



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Report of the Trustees (continued)
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Plans for future periods

The charity plans to continue and expand the activities and support it is successfully delivering for young people into
next year. The Hub is developing a strategic income generation plan which will help deliver future self-sustainability.

This includes:-

e |dentification of Strategic Alliances and partners

e Grant funding bids to support our work with young people

e Generating income from current facilities and hire (The young people have agreed to assist with the
generation of income by hiring the sports facilities to member of the public, income generation targets)

e The hire of classrooms. The Hub has 3 classrooms 2 of which are occupied by educational partners delivering
qualifications to young people.

e Generating income from special events including music festival for young people

e Options for maximising value from assets

Reserves policy

The charity is in the early stages of its development. It is seeking to build up reserves which will equate to a minimum
of three months turnover — which will approximate to about £125,000 — this will allow it to manage short term
financial risk effectively. Although the strategy is to continue to build reserves through planned operating surpluses,
the trustees are well aware that it unlikely that the target range can be reached for at least five years. In the short
term the trustees have also considered the extent to which existing activities and expenditure could be curtailed,
should such circumstances arise.

Risk management

Risk to the project has been assessed and a risk management plan was developed for the original business plan. The
board has recently set up a sub committee which will review these risks on a regular basis. The board will conducted
an annual review and the risk register is updated at least annually. Where appropriate, systems or procedures have
been established to mitigate the risks the charity faces. Significant external risks to funding have led to the charity
beginning to develop a strategic funding plan which will allow for the diversification of funding and activities to
support services for young people. Internal control risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for
authorisation of all transactions and projects. Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with health and safety of
staff, volunteers, clients and visitors to the centre.

By Order of the, Trustees

(allon.

P Morton
Trustee

30th October 2014

8|Page

Page 109



Mitchell Charlesworth LLP

Chartered Accountants
5 Temple Square Temple Street Liverpool L2 5RH

INDEPENDENT EXAMINER’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF

TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

I report on the accounts of the company for the period ended 31st March 2014 which are set out on pages 10 to 16.
Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts. The Trustees consider that an audit is not required for this period under section 144(2)
of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act) and that an independent examination is needed.

Having satisfied myself that the charity is not subject to an audit under company law and is eligible for independent
examination, it is my responsibility to:

* examine the accounts under section 145 of the 2011 Act;

= follow the procedures laid down in the general Directions given by the Charity Commission (under section
145(5)(b) of the Act, as amended); and

= state whether particular matters have come to my attention.
Basis of independent examiner's statement

My examination was carried out in accordance with general Directions given by the Charity Commission. An
examination includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a comparison of the accounts
presented with those records. It also includes consideration of any unusual items or disclosures in the accounts, and
seeking explanations from you as Trustees concerning any such matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide
all the evidence that would be required in an audit, and consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts
present a “true and fair view” and the report is limited to those matters set out in the statement below.

Independent examiner's statement
In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention:
1 which gives me reasonable cause to believe that, in any material respect, the requirements:
= to keep accounting records in accordance with section 386 of the Companies Act 2006; and

*  to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records, comply with the accounting requirements
of section 396 of the Companies Act 2006 and with the methods and principles of the Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities

have not been met; or

2 to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts
to be reached.

AL I,

P L Griffiths FCA DChA
MITCHELL CHARLESWORTH LLP
Liverpool

30th October 2014

9|Page

Page 110



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Statement of Financial Activities
for the period ended 31st March 2014

Summary Income and Expenditure Account

Total

Incoming resources Notes Unrestricted Restricted 2014

£ £ £
Incoming resources from generated funds:
Investment income 2 1 - 1
Incoming resources from charitable activities 3 381,382 19,837 401,219
Total incoming resources 381,383 19,837 401,220
Resources expended
Charitable activities 4 350,744 8,514 359,258
Governance costs 5 1,800 - 1,800
Total resources expended 352,544 8,514 361,058
Net incoming resources for the period 6 28,839 11,323 40,162
Total funds at 31st March 2014 28,839 11,323 40,162
The notes on pages 12 to 16 form part of these accounts.

10|Page

Page 111



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Balance Sheet
31st March 2014

Notes 2014
£ £

Current assets
Debtors 10 55,116
Cash at bank and in hand 156,779

211,895
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 11 171,733
Net current assets 40,162
Net assets 40,162
Unrestricted funds
General funds 12 28,839
Restricted funds 13 11,323
Total funds 14 40,162

For the period ended 31st March 2014 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

a) the members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the period in question in
accordance with section 476;

b) the directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to
accounting records and the preparation of accounts.

Approved by the Trustees on 30th October 2014 and authorised for issue and signed on their behalf by:-

T o
/

K Timmins
Trustee

Company Registration Number: 08444912

The notes on pages 12 to 16 form part of these accounts.

11 |Page

Page 112



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Notes to the Accounts
Period ended 31st March 2014

Accounting policies

Accounting basis

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, and the Statement of Recommended
Practice — Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2005) issued in March 2005, applicable UK Accounting
Standards and the Companies Act 2006.

Incoming resources

Voluntary income including donations, and other sundry income of a general nature is recognised where there is
entitlement, certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. Such income is only
deferred when:-

= The donor specifies that the grant or donation must only be used in future accounting periods; or
= The donor has imposed conditions which must be met before the charity has unconditional entitlement.

Income from charitable activities including income received under contract or where entitlement to grant
funding is subject to specific performance conditions, is recognised as earned or as the related goods or services
are provided. Grant income included in this category provides funding to support specific activities and is
recognised where there is entitlement, certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Volunteers and donated services and facilities
The value of services provided by volunteers is not incorporated into these accounts. Further details of the
contribution made by volunteers can be found in the trustees’ annual report.

Where services are provided to the charity as a donation that would normally be purchased from our suppliers,
this contribution is included in the accounts at an estimate based on the value of the contribution to the charity.

Grants
Grants, including grants for the purchase of fixed assets, are recognised in full in the Statement of Financial
Activities in the period in which they are receivable.

Resources expended
Expenditure is recognised when a liability is incurred. Contractual arrangements and performance related grants
are recognised as goods or services are supplied.

> Charitable activities include expenditure associated with the provision of a citizens advice bureau and the
delivery of income maximisation projects and includes both the direct costs and support costs relating to
these activities.

> Governance costs include those incurred in the governance of the charity and its assets and are primarily
associated with constitutional and statutory requirements.

Capitalisation of fixed assets
All expenditure for the acquisition of fixed assets is included in the balance sheet at cost.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life at the following rates,
charging a full period’s depreciation in the period of acquisition and none in the period of disposal as follows:-

Fixtures and fittings - 25% reducing balance
Computer equipment - 33% straight line

12|Page

Page 113



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Notes to the Accounts
Period ended 31st March 2014

Accounting policies (continued)

Funds

Unrestricted funds are donations and other incoming resources receivable or generated for the furtherance of
the charity’s objects without further specified purpose and are available as general funds.

Restricted funds are to be used for specific purposes as laid down by the donor. Expenditure which meets
these criteria is charged to the fund, together with a fair allocation of management and support costs.

Investment income Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2014
£ £ £
Bank interest receivable 1 - 1.
Incoming resources from charitable Total
activities Unrestricted Restricted 2014
£ £ £
Gym membership 123,412 - 123,412
Vending income 7,505 - 7,505
Rent received 31,275 - 31,275
Donations 37,587 - 37,587
City of Liverpool 150,000 - 150,000
Grants 14,520 19,837 34,357
Other income 16,329 - 16,329
Fundraising events 7,154 - 754
381,382 19,837 401,219

Deferred/

accrued

income
Received in carried 2014
period forward Total
£ £ £
Gym membership 125,962 (2,550) 123,412
Vending income 3,393 4,112 7,505
Rent received 27,733 3,542 31,275
Donations 37,587 - 37,587
City of Liverpool 150,000 - 150,000
Grants 34,357 - 34,357
Other income 16,329 - 16,329
Fundraising events 754 - 754
Sponsorship monies 130,000 (130,000) -
526,115 (124,896) 401,219
13|Page

Page 114



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Notes to the Accounts
Period ended 31st March 2014

4. Charitable activities Total
2014

Providing youths with a safe and supervised environment to

socialise and maintain health and wellbeing 22,671
Staff costs 269,814
Establishment cost 44,696
Other 22,077
359,258

5. Governance costs Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2014

£ £ £

Accountancy and external scrutiny fees 1,800 # 1,800

6. Net outgoing resources for the period Total
2014

This is stated after charging: £

External examiner’s fees:
Independent examination 1,800
Other services 6,022




TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Notes to the Accounts
Period ended 31st March 2014

8. Staff costs and numbers Total
2014

£

Salaries and wages 252,433
Social security costs 17,381

269,814

There are no employees earning at the rate of £60,000 or more per annum.

The average weekly number of employees during the period was as follows:- Number
Project 16
Management and support 11
Total 27

None of the trustees received any remuneration during the period. Reimbursed expenses amounted to £Nil.

9. Taxation

The company is exempt from corporation tax on its charitable activities.

10. Debtors 2014
£

Trade debtors 42,757
Prepayments 4,705
Accrued income 7,654
55,116

11. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one period 2014
£

Trade creditors 3,871
Social Security and other taxes 6,181
Accruals and deferred income 161,681
171,733

15|Page

Page 116



TOXTETH FIREFIT HUB

Notes to the Accounts
Period ended 31st March 2014

12.  Unrestricted funds Incoming Outgoing As at
resources resources 31.03.14

£ £ £

General fund 381,383 352,544 28,839

13.  Restricted funds Incoming Outgoing As at
Resources resources 31.03.14

£ £ £

Liverpool City Council (Play Heath) 1,982 (1,982) -
Street Ganes UK 5,000 (5,000) -

Sister Hub 2,000 - 2,000
Merseyside Sports Partnership 5,950 (1,427) 4,523

John Moores Foundation 4,905 (105) 4,800
19,837 (8,514) 11,323

The restricted fund balances relate to specific projects and events run by the charity and in accordance with the
conditions of the grant.

14.  Analysis of net assets between funds Unrestricted Restricted Total
Funds Funds Funds

£ £ £

Net current assets 28,839 11,323 40,162

Net assets at 31st March 2014 28,839 11,323 40,162

15. Members liability
The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. Every member of the Association undertakes
to contribute to the assets of the Society, in the event of being wound up while he or she is a member or
within one period of ceasing to be a member for debts and liabilities of the Society contracted before he or
she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required not exceeding £1.

16. Ultimate controlling party
In the opinion of the trustees, there is no ultimate controlling party.

17. Capital commitments

There are no capital commitments as at 31st March 2014.

l6|Page

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Agenda Iltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

This report is Restricted

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

This report is Restricted

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Financial Review 2014/15 - April to September
	Appendix A1to A4: Revenue Budget and Reserve Movements
	Appendix B: Capital Programme 2014/15
	Appendix C: Approved Authority Capital Programme 2014/15 -2018/19
	Appendix D: Transformation Fund Letter
	Appendix D2: Transformation Fund Letter - detail
	Appendix E: Debtor Write-Offs

	4 Treasury Management Interim Report 2014/15
	Appendix A: treasury management interim report 2014/15

	5 Voluntary Severance Grey Book
	6 Introduction of Apprenticeships
	Appendix 1: INTRODUCTION OF APPRENTICESHIPS
	Appendix 2: INTRODUCTION OF APPRENTICESHIPS

	7 Merseyside Police Estate Strategy
	Appendix 1: Merseyside Police Estate Strategy
	Appendix 2: Proposed Response to Consultation
	Appendix 3: Merseyside Police Estate Strategy

	8 Toxteth Firefit Hub Annual Report and Accounts
	Appendix 1: Toxteth Firefit Hub Annual Report and Accounts

	9 Station Mergers Project - Appointment of Contractor
	Appendix A: New Community Fire Stations: Mini Competition REport - Todd & Ledson




